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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

GOVERNANCE

“2017 was another year of strong growth in the
Society’s mortgage book and its savings balances.
Profitability improved, and the Society
continued to invest in its branch network and
its people and systems, to support future growth
for the benefit of our members.”
COLIN FRANKLIN

The Society remained true to the core values
of a traditional building society, with a focus on
mortgage lending funded from retail savings.
Most of the Society’s funding comes from its
branch based savings accounts, with funds also
drawn down from the Bank of England’s Term
Funding Scheme (TFS).
The UK economy proved more resilient to the
uncertainties caused by Brexit than might have
been expected and in November the Bank of
England’s Monetary Policy Committee decided
to increase Bank Base Rate to 0.50%, reversing
the 0.25% reduction made in August 2016
following the outcome of the EU Referendum.
Although we anticipate that the next change to
Bank Base Rate is more likely to be an increase
than a decrease, many commentators do not
expect this increase to happen until later in
2018, with future rises being gradual in nature
and settling below the 2008 pre-crisis level.
Competition in the mortgage market remains
intense, leading to further downwards pressure
on mortgage rates, fuelled by the very low
level of the Bank Base Rate and the availability
of TFS funding. The overall volume of housing
transactions was little changed from a year
earlier and although mortgage lending growth
has been picking up, it remains well below
2008 levels.

The fact that the Bank of England has kept
interest rates at historically low levels will have
been welcomed by the Society’s borrowers
but will have been a major disappointment to
savers. We are very aware of the difficulties
that savers have been facing in recent years,
with market rates falling yet again in 2017.
The Society has done what it can to protect
savers from this squeeze on their income
by continuing to offer an attractive range of
competitive savings accounts and in December
2017 we were pleased to be awarded
“best variable rate cash ISA provider” by
Savings Champion.
The directors consider that market conditions
will remain challenging in 2018 and beyond
and that in particular, the low interest rate
environment will continue to impact profit
margins. However, we remain confident that
the Society’s high-quality balance sheet, robust
capital ratios and careful approach to managing
risk will continue to underpin its financial
strength and place it in a strong position to
continue to grow.

Finally, I am very pleased to report that after
a lengthy search for a suitable site, the Society
has exchanged contracts to buy the former
Magistrates Court building on Upper Bond
Street in Hinckley, conditional upon permission
for change of use. After refurbishment, this
building will make an ideal modern new
Head Office and enable the Society to keep
its centre of operations in Hinckley, having
outgrown the current office space.

COLIN FRANKLIN
Chairman
24th January 2018

Following the AGM in March 2017, Paul
Parmenter and Andrew Astin retired from
the Board, having helped to successfully guide
the Society through and beyond the credit
crisis. I welcome Barbara Mellish and Nemone
Wynn-Evans to the Board in their place. I also
welcome Dean Waddingham, who joined the
Board in May 2017 as Operations Director.
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I am pleased to report that 2017 was another
year of strong growth in the Society’s
mortgage book and its savings balances.
Profitability improved, and the Society
continued to invest in its branch network and
its people and systems, to support future
growth for the benefit of our members.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Chairman
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT
“With strong advances and a high level of
borrower retention the Society’s mortgage
book grew by 15% during the year (2016 14%)
to £620m.”
CHRIS WHITE
Chief Executive

THE YEAR
MORTGAGES
I am very pleased to report that in 2017 the
Society achieved a 12% increase in mortgage
advances (2017 £193m, 2016 £172m) and
ended the year with a healthy pipeline of
mortgage business (2017 £53.1m, 2016
£55.6m).
Lending in 2017 included residential loans at
up to 95% loan to value. All lending in excess
of 80% loan to value is backed by mortgage
indemnity insurance, which protects the
Society’s interests in the event of the borrower
going into default. Most importantly, this new
business was of a high quality, where the
borrower’s ability to pay had been carefully
assessed. Our mortgage arrears remain
exceptionally low.
During the year the Society helped 327
first-time buyers purchase their first home.
Our successful borrower retention programme
ensured that a very high proportion of
borrowers reaching the end of a discount or
fixed rate scheme stayed with us. For each
of our existing mortgage members coming
to the end of their current deal, we always
aim to have a product available for them that
meets their needs and we will continue to
focus on building long term relationships with
our borrowers by providing them with high
standards of service and competitive products.
With strong advances and a high level of
borrower retention the Society’s mortgage
book grew by 15% during the year (2016 14%)
to £620m.
In common with our peers, the Society sources
a high proportion of its mortgage business
from mortgage intermediaries and we have
continued to enhance our processes and
systems to ensure we meet the needs of this
important channel. We have also continued to
forge much closer relationships with a select
number of intermediary networks.
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The buy to let sector continues to help drive
growth in the UK mortgage market, influenced
in part by a structural shift in tenure to the
private rental sector. In 2017 the Society
advanced £57m on buy to let mortgages
(2016 £29m) and at the year-end, buy to let
mortgages represented 21% of the Society’s
overall mortgage book at £131.4m (2016 18%
at £96.7m).

PEOPLE AND CULTURE

The Society manages carefully its exposure
to the buy to let market, with clearly
documented underwriting criteria, which
comply with Prudential Regulation Authority
(PRA) standards, including limits regarding
the total amount of such lending in a year and
the maximum stock of loans, a maximum
loan to value limit of 75%, a maximum loan
size of £500,000 and prudent affordability
criteria. We will continue to carefully monitor
developments in the buy to let market.

The Society was also proud to win an award
for its Commitment to People Development
at the East Midlands Chamber Leicestershire
Business Awards.

SAVINGS
As well as mortgage rates falling throughout
the year we also saw further reductions in
savings rates. The directors did what they
could to protect members from falling rates
but have had little choice than to fall into line
with market rates or risk being inundated
with funds. Nonetheless, we have still been
able to provide a competitive range of savings
accounts, with our branch based easy access
and notice accounts, including ISA accounts,
proving popular. Our branches and agencies
achieved very good growth in their balances.
Over 90% of our members with savings
accounts live within our core branch network
area. Some withdrawals were made from
postal accounts held by members from outside
our core area. However, overall, retail savings
balances grew by £55m during the year (2016
£34m) to £576m.

We are sponsoring three senior managers
from the Society to take part in a pioneering
Masters programme developed specially
by the School of Business and Economics at
Loughborough University and the Building
Societies Association, geared specifically
for those who work in a mutual financial
services firm.

In 2017, the Building Societies Association
surveyed employees across the building society
sector, to find out more about the impact that
the ownership structure has on culture as seen
through the eyes of employees. The Society
participated in the survey and the results
showed that our members’ interests were
truly at the heart of our business and that staff
were very aligned with the Society’s culture
and values.
Prudent management, in partnership with
the scheme Trustee, of the Society’s defined
benefit pension scheme has ensured that,
despite market volatility over the last few years,
the scheme remains in surplus.

GOVERNANCE
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The Society is represented in some of the
larger towns and cities in Leicestershire and
Warwickshire, whilst continuing to provide an
invaluable service in smaller communities within
our operating areas. The fact that our roots are
firmly anchored in the local community is also
demonstrated both by our making of donations
where they can best assist those most in need
and by providing our support to many of our
staff who have volunteered to give their time
to local groups and charities.
In addition to local campaigns we have
continued our strong support to national
campaigns, including Children in Need.
During 2017, many schemes and charities have
once again benefited from the assistance given
by the Society, with special attention being paid
to those voluntary groups providing help and
guidance to the more disadvantaged sections
of the community.
The Society is an active member of
Leicestershire Cares, which helps bring
businesses and communities together, for the
benefit of all, through employee volunteering.
Many of our staff helped in local schools and
colleges as well as participating in numerous
other community activities, including those
arranged by Leicestershire Cares.
We donated 20 pence to charity for each vote
cast by post and 40 pence for each vote cast
online at our 2017 Annual General Meeting,
with £1,250 donated to Rainbows, the East
Midlands Children’s Hospice, to help them to
continue their vital work.
The Society is also proud of its affinity savings
account, from which three local hospices
benefit: LOROS, Mary Ann Evans and Myton.
This account pays 1% of the average balances
held, split equally between the three hospices,
and in 2017 £24,000 was accrued for their
benefit, bringing the total amount donated
since the launch of the account to over
£120,000.

In 2017, the Society teamed up once again with
WizeUp, a not-for-profit group of financial
education experts, to assist Hinckley Academy,
Dorothy Goodman School in Hinckley and
Rugby’s Lawrence Sheriff School, to help pupils
prepare for their futures beyond school.

MEMBER INVOLVEMENT
The Society has an active Member Panel,
with several Board members present at Panel
meetings. Panel meetings have been well
attended by member volunteers and have
been a very useful way of seeking views and
ideas on how we should be developing our
products and services. We are always keen
to hear from members who are interested in
attending meetings of this kind. The Society
also holds member events around its branch
network, with Board members on hand to
engage with members, and these have proved
very informative.

FINANCIAL SERVICES
COMPENSATION SCHEME (FSCS)
On 30th January 2017, the FSCS deposit
protection limit was increased back to £85,000,
having been reduced to £75,000 in 2016.
To date the Society has had to pay £2.05m to
cover its share of the FSCS levies. Whilst the
amounts levied so far and those likely to be
levied in the future do not pose a threat
to the Society’s business model, the FSCS
could remain a cost burden for some time to
come. However, in 2017, UK Asset Resolution
(UKAR), which has been managing the
loan book of Bradford & Bingley since 2010,
resumed a programme of sale of these assets.
Proceeds have been used to repay debt
borrowed by the FSCS from HM Treasury and
this will reduce future interest charges levied to
the industry.

REGULATORY DEVELOPMENTS
The Society monitors its position relative
to the short-term liquidity stress metric, the
Liquidity Coverage Ratio and the longer-term
funding metric, the Net Stable Funding Ratio
and anticipates that it will continue to comply
with these regulatory measures.

OTHER INFORMATION

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

An accommodating stance from the Bank
of England, contained within the Sterling
Monetary Framework, suggests that the
funding environment for solvent banks
and building societies is likely to remain
positive, with increased flexibility and
availability of liquidity provided to solvent
financial institutions.
In December 2017, the Basel Committee on
Banking Supervision published revisions to the
Standardised Approach for credit risk which
will take effect from 1st January 2022 and will
be phased in over five years. This will be taken
into account in the Society’s capital planning.
The Society has worked to ensure compliance
with the new rules issued by the PRA and
the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) which
are designed to strengthen accountability in
banking. The changes brought about by these
rules were significant and included:
• a new “senior managers’ regime” for
individuals who are subject to regulatory
approval, which requires firms to allocate
a range of responsibilities to these
individuals and to regularly vet their fitness
and propriety;
• a “certification regime” which requires
firms to assess the fitness and propriety of
certain employees who could pose a risk
of significant harm to the firm or any of its
customers; and
• a new set of “conduct rules”.

Hinckley & Rugby Building Society
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The Society was awarded the top
prize for its Commitment to People
Development at the prestigious 2017
East Midlands Chamber Leicestershire
Business Awards.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT (continued)

120 pupils from Rugby’s Lawrence
Sheriff School got to grips with
money in a day of financial education
sponsored by the Society. Ed Flack,
of not-for-profit organisation WizeUp,
ran sessions covering budgeting, savings
and investments.

The start date for most of the regime was
7th March 2016, although firms had until
7th March 2017, to issue certificates under
the certification regime, and to prepare for
the wider application of new conduct rules
to staff outside the senior management and
certification regime. These deadlines were met.
The Society is working towards compliance
with the General Data Protection Regulation,
which will apply from 25th May 2018. We are
working in consortium with other building
societies on certain aspects of this project.

MARKET DEVELOPMENTS/ BREXIT
With modest economic recovery in the United
Kingdom, anticipation of further interest rate
increases in the USA and a fall in the value of
sterling following Brexit heightening the risk
of inflation, it is likely that the next change in
Bank Base Rate will be an increase. Whilst the
timing is uncertain, particularly given that there
may yet be headwinds for the UK economy
because of Brexit, the pace of eventual rate
increases is expected to be modest. However,
an unexpectedly sharp rise in interest rates
could test the resilience of some borrowers.
In addition, the upward pressure on house
prices has continued and there is a risk of
a correction in house prices, particularly
within some geographical regions that have
experienced strong growth.
The Society protects itself from these risks by
its robust mortgage underwriting standards
and by arranging appropriate mortgage
indemnity insurance when it lends at higher
loan to value ratios. The robust credit
assessments and affordability controls that are
in place have contributed to our low historical
arrears and should ensure that the Society’s
borrowers are able to manage any likely
increases in interest rates.
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Rising interest rates could also increase risk as
the established relationships between Bank
Base Rate and retail savings and mortgage
rates could quickly change, requiring careful
management. This is referred to as ‘basis risk’.
We expect the domestic backdrop to help
underpin a gentle improvement in housing
and mortgage market activity, though this will
be limited, as a result of affordability pressures
and new supply challenges. However, the
uncertainty surrounding Brexit is a threat to
UK economic activity and hence to the level of
activity in the housing and mortgage markets.
Lending will be supported by house purchase
activity from home movers and first-time
buyers and re-mortgage activity across the
board. Buy to let faces a challenging period as
recent tax changes are expected to adversely
impact the sector over the next couple
of years.

OUR FUTURE PLANS
For the Society, and the rest of the building
society sector, the fundamental mutual
model remains intact. The Building Societies
Association undertakes research on building
society and bank customers’ perceptions of
the service levels which they receive from
their institutions. Time and time again we see
that building societies are out in the lead in
customer perceptions of trust, value for money,
fairness, and quality of service. This is consistent
with the feedback that we receive on a regular
basis from our own members.

Our vision is to be seen as the leading local
building society, based upon a reputation
for providing members with good value
savings and mortgage products, backed up by
excellent personal service. We aim to have a
successful business which has a sustainable level
of profitability and a growing member base,
because we are seen as a relevant and natural
choice for savings locally and a preferred choice
for selected mortgage intermediaries.
We will stay at the heart of our local
communities, helping people to build savings
and buy their own homes, be an employer
of choice and invest in and support the areas
within which we work.
We will continue to lend predominantly on
prime residential mortgages backed by robust
affordability assessments and all lending will
be subject to prudent risk limits, with lending
at higher loan to values subject to mortgage
indemnity insurance. We will continue to offer
a full range of mortgages, including fixed rate
mortgages, to meet customer demand.
Over the next three years the Society plans
to use the strength of its capital base to
continue to grow its residential mortgage
book, to improve its cost income ratio and
its profitability.

STRATEGIC REPORT

Our funding will come predominantly from
our members who use our branches and
agencies, but we will also maintain our offer of
accounts on a postal basis, in order to serve
members who do not live within easy reach
of our premises, and will continue to provide a
product for local businesses.
We will continue to develop online
functionality for savers and borrowers, building
upon the success of this already having been
made available to our Offset account holders.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our future strategy remains centred on the
traditional building society model, focused on
prime residential lending funded predominantly
from retail savings. We have always believed
firmly in putting the safety and security of
our members’ funds above the need to make
higher short term profits and will continue
to do so. Our strong capital ratios enable the
directors to continue to take this longer term
view. There has been further consolidation
within the building society sector over the past
few years, but we are a strong independent
society and it is the Board’s intention to remain
so in the interests of its members.

OTHER INFORMATION

The growth of the private rented sector has
been very noticeable in recent years and buy to
let mortgages will remain an important feature
of that market, despite the anticipated adverse
impact of tax changes. We will continue to
make available buy to let mortgages for private
individuals but, in order to best manage the
risks associated with this type of lending, will
continue to restrict the amount that we will
lend in a year, restrict the proportion of our
overall mortgage book represented by this
type of mortgage and restrict the maximum
loan to value ratios at which we will lend.

GOVERNANCE

Three local hospices – Leicestershire
and Rutland’s LOROS, Nuneaton’s
Mary Ann Evans and Myton, covering
Rugby – shared in a donation of
£24,000 from the funds saved in the
Society’s Hospice Affinity account
the previous year, bringing the total
donated since 2008 to over £120,000.

CHRIS WHITE
Chief Executive
24th January, 2018

A growing funding base will be used to source
the increase of our mortgage book in order
to generate additional profits to sustain our
capital base and to improve our services
for members.
The Society was granted access to the funding
available from the Bank of England’s TFS and
we have used this to support growth in our
mortgage book, as well as to repay all the funds
we borrowed under the Bank of England’s
Funding for Lending Scheme. Funds borrowed
under the TFS are due for repayment from
late 2020 onwards but we plan to begin
repayment earlier.

Hinckley & Rugby Building Society
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FINANCE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
“In 2017, profit before tax and net gains/losses
from derivative financial instruments increased
to £0.91m (2016 £0.53m).”
ANDREW PAYTON
Finance Director

This section of the annual report reviews
the current position and performance of the
Society. Throughout this section information
is provided on key performance indicators
monitored by the Board. Other operational
key performance indicators are set out in the
Directors’ Report.
The audited disclosures required by the
Capital Requirements Directive (Countryby-Country Reporting) Regulations 2013,
which are prepared to comply with the
Capital Requirements Directive, are shown
on page 62.
Our overall strategy is set out in the
Chairman’s Statement on page 1 and
the report from the Chief Executive on
pages 2 to 5.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL POSITION
The following list sets out key financial
measures as at 30th November 2017
compared with the position at 30th
November 2016.
• Increase in net interest income to £7.89m
(2016 £7.08m).
• Net interest margin was 1.15% (2016 1.17%).
• Administrative expenses including
depreciation and amortisation increased to
£7.11m (2016 £6.66m).
• Management expenses as a percentage
of mean total assets decreased to 1.03%
(2016 1.10%).
• Profit before tax and net gains/losses from
derivative financial instruments increased to
£0.91m (2016 £0.53m).
• Profit before tax was £1.30m
(2016 £0.34m).
• Gross capital as a percentage of shares and
borrowings of 5.8% (2016 6.8%).
• Retail deposits increased to £575.9m
(2016 £521.3m), equal to 93% of total loans
outstanding (2016 97%).
• Funding from the short-term wholesale
market £9.8m (2016 £19.1m).
• Funding raised from the Bank of England’s
Term Funding Scheme and Indexed LongTerm Repo (ILTR) operations, using existing
mortgage assets as collateral of £113.0m
(2016 £54.0m).
• Liquid assets of £116.7m (2016 £90.2m)
representing 16.7% of shares and borrowings
(2016 15.2%). Of this, £5.0m was held in UK
Government stock and £106.1m on deposit
at the Bank of England.
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• Growth of £79.4m in the Society’s mortgage
portfolio to £619.7m (2016 £540.3m),
including buy to let mortgages totalling
£131.4m (2016 £96.7m).
• Mortgage advances totalled £193m (2016
£172m) including advances on buy to let
mortgages of £57m (2016 £29m).
• At the year-end the number of borrowers
in arrears with their monthly mortgage
repayments by one month or more was just
11 (2016 12) representing only 0.2% of all
borrowers (2016 0.2%).

PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS
In 2017, profit before tax and net gains/losses
from derivative financial instruments increased
to £0.91m (2016 £0.53m). The Society uses
derivative instruments to manage exposure
to changes in interest rates which arise from
fixed rate mortgage lending and fixed rate
retail savings products. This leads to volatility in
results; such volatility would only be realised if
the Society chose to sell the derivatives before
they reach maturity. The Society has no need
or intention to sell these derivatives and so
expects the associated fair value adjustments
to reverse out over the derivatives’ remaining
lives. As this volatility arises primarily due
to timing differences the Board excludes its
impact in measuring underlying performance.

1.15

0.91
4.927

5.452

6.029

6.661

7.106
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1.17

1.04

Profit Before Tax and Derivative
Financial Instruments (£ 000’s)

906

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

NET INTEREST MARGIN
The difference between the interest rates
earned from mortgages and liquid assets
compared with those paid on savings and
wholesale funding is called the net interest
margin and is a key measure of the underlying
performance of the Society.
When interest rates started to fall rapidly, in
2008 and 2009, the Society reduced its savings
rates by less than the reduction in Bank Base
Rate in order to do what it could to protect
the income of its savers and this contributed
to a narrowing of the net interest margin.
The margin earned by the underlying business
has since improved. In 2017 the net interest
margin was 1.15% (2016 1.17%).

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
INCLUDING DEPRECIATION
AND AMORTISATION
Following the onset of the financial crisis
administrative expenses including depreciation
and amortisation were contained at a much
lower level than before. As our income
reduced as a consequence of lower interest
rates and subdued economic activity we had
to adopt a careful approach and keep close
control of our costs. As economic conditions
have improved we have invested in facilities,
services and staffing, to ensure that the Society
has the capacity to compete and grow, which is
in the interests of its members.
When managing costs, the directors are
mindful of the need to ensure that we can
continue to provide high quality services
to members and our customer satisfaction
surveys continue to produce positive
results. Members consistently comment in
questionnaires that they like our personal
approach, often singling out individual staff
members for praise. The message keeps
coming through loud and clear that our
members dislike call centres and the anonymity
of the larger banks and building societies.
Costs have increased in 2017 because of
investment in our IT infrastructure, the cost
of compliance with regulatory requirements,
recruitment costs and additional staff costs,
as the Society improved its capacity for
future growth.

261

247

2013

2014
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527
317

2015

2016

2017

CAPITAL
Capital is held to provide protection for
members’ deposits against losses from lending.
The Society generates capital from profit made
by normal business activities.
At 30th November 2017 the Society’s gross
capital ratio (gross capital expressed as a
percentage of total shares and deposits) was
5.83% (2016 6.79%). Gross capital represents
the sum of the general reserve and the
available for sale reserve as shown in the
balance sheet. As the Society’s gross capital
largely represents general reserves generated
exclusively from retained profit there is no
on-going cost to service this capital, putting
the Society in a strong position for future
activity. As expected, the gross capital ratio has
fallen during a period of strong growth while
remaining well above regulatory requirements.

Gross Capital Ratio (%) /
Amount of Capital (£ million)

7.46% 7.64% 7.51% 6.79% 5.83%

38.4

38.8

39.8

40.4

40.7

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017
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1.20

Administrative Expenses including
Depreciation and Amortisation
(£ million)

OTHER INFORMATION

Net Interest Margin
(%)
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FINANCE DIRECTOR’S REPORT (continued)
Overall Funding including Term
Funding Scheme (£ million)
Retail

Wholesale

Total Assets and Mortgage
Balances (£ million)
Mortgages

Other assets

Society

698.7
594.5

508.0

529.6

52.1

39.0

42.2

73.2

462.4

469.0

487.4

521.3

2013

2014

2015

2016

514.5

740.6
636.7

556.4

550.0

571.3

111.0

96.3

95.9

575.9

445.4

453.7

475.4

540.3

619.7

2017

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

122.8

FUNDING
In accordance with its role as a mutual building
society the Society draws the majority of
its funding from its members in the form of
retail deposits, which at 30th November 2017
represented 82% of the Society’s total funding.
The Society also makes use of wholesale
funding and funding from the Bank of England
for balance sheet management flexibility.
Retail savings balances grew by £54.6m in
2017, with funding from the Bank of England
increasing by £59.0m and funding from
wholesale sources reducing by £9.4m.

LIQUIDITY MANAGEMENT
The Society’s directors consider it prudent
to hold an appropriate level of high-quality
liquidity and at the 2017 year-end, liquid assets
totalled 16.7% of shares and borrowings (2016
15.2%).
At 30th November 2017 the Society’s liquid
assets totalled £116.7m, of which £111.1m
was held at the Bank of England or in UK
Government stock. The Society, in common
with its peers, has access to the Bank of
England’s Discount Window Facility, Indexed
Long-Term Repo (ILTR) operations and until
28th February 2018 the Term Funding Scheme,
should the need to raise further funds arise.
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in arrears (%)
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96.4

3.00
2.51

120.9

ASSETS AND MORTGAGE
BALANCES
In 2014 the Society improved the quality of its
liquidity and consequently needed to hold less,
resulting in a reduction in total assets. In 2015,
2016 and 2017, total assets grew as a result
of growth in the Society’s mortgage book of
£21.7m, £64.9m and £79.4m respectively.
Mortgage advances in 2017 totalled £193m,
up from £172m last year. This lending included
a managed amount of buy to let business,
as margins on this type of business were
attractive. The Society restricts its buy to let
lending to lower loan to value ratios than it
considers for owner occupied loans. At the
year-end, buy to let mortgages totalled 21% of
the Society’s total mortgage book. Lending in
2017 also included residential loans at up to
95% loan to value, which included loans to
first-time buyers, where the borrower’s ability
to pay has been carefully assessed. All lending
in excess of 80% loan to value is backed by
mortgage indemnity insurance, which protects
the Society’s interests in the event of the
borrower going into default.

UK Finance industry average

2.12

0.40

0.40

2013

2014

1.79

1.47

0.20

0.22

0.20

2015

2016

2017

CREDIT RISK PERFORMANCE
At the Hinckley and Rugby, the safety and
security of our members’ savings has always
been of paramount importance. This is
embodied in the Society’s prudent approach
to mortgage lending (resulting in a highquality mortgage book) and we continue
to benefit from an extremely low level of
mortgage arrears. As a result of the quality
of the Society’s mortgage book we are very
well placed to take advantage of an upturn in
the market.
At 30th November 2017 only 11 borrowers
were in arrears with their monthly mortgage
repayments by one month or more (2016 12)
representing just 0.20% of all borrowers (2016
0.22%). This is much lower than the industry
average as reported by UK Finance (the trade
association for the UK banking and financial
services sector).
There were no properties in possession
at 30th November 2017 or at 30th
November 2016.

ANDREW PAYTON
Finance Director
24th January 2018

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
STRATEGIC REPORT

Hinckley & Rugby is passionate about
being a good citizen and a great place to
work. Our proactive approach to helping
others in our heartlands of Leicestershire
and Warwickshire fits perfectly with our
ethos as a mutual.

The Society is proud of its pioneering
volunteer scheme ‘Community First’
which gives staff up to three days’
paid leave each year to get involved
in volunteering projects of their choice.
We are delighted to be members
of Leicestershire Cares, with our staff
volunteering each week on projects with
local schoolchildren struggling with literacy
and numeracy.

A team of staff from various Society departments
joined forces to clear paths through the woods
at Fosse Meadows Nature Area, near Sharnford,
in an annual community team challenge for
Leicestershire Cares.

A Mortgage Department team took part in a charity
‘Wolf Run’ to raise funds for Pink Pants Trust –
a charity founded by fellow colleague Sally Chapman
(centre).

OTHER INFORMATION

The Society’s community work enables, in
small but frequent ways, very good things
to happen that help members of our
extended family of neighbours, customers
and friends.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOVERNANCE

Thanks to their volunteering, and the
Society’s encouragement, our staff feel
good and it makes our region a better
place to live, save, work and buy a home.

Top: Staff from the branch network joined Principal
Office colleagues to lay on a Christmas party for
service users at Hinckley’s Mencap Centre, complete
with carols, games and a buffet dinner, as a festive
challenge for Leicestershire Cares.
Left: A Society donation helped St Mary’s Church in
Hinckley host its annual Teddy Bear Bungee to raise
funds for vital church maintenance. Accounts Assistant
Nate Jones and Society bear ‘Fearless Freddie’ trialled
the equipment with Rev John Whittaker.

The Society went red for the day in February in support of Comic Relief – staff in Savings Department
organised a cake sale, helping to raise £500 for the charity.

Hinckley & Rugby Building Society
Annual Report and Accounts 2017
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

The Society sponsored new
trophies for Burgess Bowls Club in
Burbage ahead of the start of the
new season, following a plea for
help from the club’s Competition
Secretary Paul Buckby.

Members of the Senior Management
Team swapped their business suits
for waterproofs and their PCs for
sponges and buckets when the
Society took part in the inaugural
Leicestershire Cares Week, raising
valuable extra funding for its range
of community and educational
programmes. Managers handwashed
staff cars and a hard-fought table
football competition topped up their
efforts, raising a superb £500 during
the week.

A team of staff and family took part
in the annual Lutterworth Santa
Fun Run in November, an event the
Society has sponsored since it began
in 2010.

Young artists were able to show
their work for the first time as part
of the Rugby Festival of Culture in an
exhibition sponsored by the Society.
A painting of Birmingham city centre
by Dylan Janes (pictured left with
Society Marketing & PR Manager
Stewart Heeley) was chosen as the
best in show and went on display in
the Rugby branch window.

The Society staff tradition of dressing
up and fundraising for Children
in Need continued this year and
along with our members’ support
managed to raise more than £1,900
for the charity.

10
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Chief Executive Chris White awarded
prizes for Volunteer of the Year to Savings
Manager Kerry McDonagh (second left)
for her time spent in local schools helping
with reading; the annual FAB Award for
excellent customer service to Office
Manager Marie Yates, representing South
Wigston branch; and Jeanette Sobalski
(far right) to mark 25 years of service as
Customer Assistant at Rugby Branch.

OTHER INFORMATION

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Members casting their votes at the
Society’s 2017 AGM helped raise £1,250
for the Rainbows Hospice for Children
and Young People. Customer Assistant
Michaela Whitehurst was very happy
to pass on the cheque to Corporate
Fundraiser Tom Stanyard at Castle
Street branch.

Society staff gave generously to
Leicestershire Cares’ Collect
For Christmas campaign, which
supported the annual Toys on the
Table initiative to provide festive
gifts for underprivileged youngsters
across the county.

The Society stepped in to help
Matthew Chilvers, from Broughton
Astley, with his costs after he was
selected to represent the East
Midlands at tennis at the Special
Olympics National Games in Sheffield.

Hinckley & Rugby Building Society
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Governance

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Board of Directors is committed to best
practice in corporate governance and where
appropriate applies the principles in the UK
Corporate Governance Code 2016, issued
by the Financial Reporting Council. The Code
is addressed to publicly quoted companies,
but the Board has regard to the Code when
establishing and reviewing its own corporate
governance arrangements.

DIRECTORS
THE BOARD
The principal functions of the Board are to
determine the strategy, culture and policies
of the Society, to set out guidelines within
which the business is managed and to
review business performance. The Board
is collectively responsible for the long term
success of the Society and as part of their role
as members of a unitary board, non-executive
directors constructively challenge and help
develop proposals on strategy. It also has
a duty to ensure that the Society operates
within the Society’s constitution and relevant
legislation and regulation and that proper
accounting records and effective systems of
business control are established, maintained,
documented and audited.
During the year the Board had four main
committees; the Audit and Compliance
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the
Board Risk Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. The terms of reference of each
committee are published on the Society’s
website. Each committee reviews its terms of
reference and performance and effectiveness
on an annual basis. The Board reviews the
minutes of all committees and approves the
terms of reference of each committee.
The Board itself meets regularly and at least 11
times a year. The non-executive directors meet
without the executive directors present twice
a year, and also without the Chairman present
at least once a year. The attendance record
of Board members at formal meetings of the
Board and its committees is shown at the end
of this report.
All Board members have the benefit of
appropriate liability insurance at the Society’s
expense and all have access to independent
professional advice if required.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
The offices of Chairman and Chief Executive
are held by different people with their roles
set out in their terms of appointment or
contract respectively.
The Chairman is responsible for leading
the Board, ensuring its effectiveness on all
aspects of its role. The Chairman is also
responsible for setting the Board’s agenda
and ensuring that adequate time is available
for discussion of all agenda items, and in
particular of strategic issues. The Chairman
ensures that the directors receive accurate,
timely and clear information in a form and
of a quality appropriate to enable the Board
to discharge its duties. The Chairman also
promotes a culture of openness and debate
by facilitating the effective contribution of nonexecutive directors in particular, and ensuring
constructive relations between executive and
non-executive directors.
The Chief Executive is responsible for managing
the Society’s business within the parameters
set by the Board and is a director on the
Society’s Board.
SENIOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
The Board has appointed a Senior Independent
Director, Mr David Woodward, to provide a
sounding board for the Chairman and to serve
as an intermediary for the other directors
when necessary. The Senior Independent
Director is also available to members if they
have any concerns which contact through the
normal channels of Chairman, Chief Executive,
Finance Director or Operations Director has
failed to resolve, or for which such contact
is inappropriate.

BOARD BALANCE AND INDEPENDENCE
The Board comprises three executives, five
non-executives and the Chairman. All nonexecutives are considered by the Board to
be independent in character and judgement
and free of any relationship or circumstance
that could interfere with the exercise of
their judgement.
APPOINTMENTS TO THE BOARD
There is a formal, rigorous and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new
directors to the Board. The Nomination
Committee, which is chaired by the Chairman
of the Board, considers the balance of skills and
experience on the Board as required by the
Society’s business strategy and having regard
to the Board’s succession plans. A description
of the role and capabilities required for a
particular appointment is prepared in the
light of that evaluation. All appointments
are made on merit, against objective criteria
and with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The Board normally
advertises externally for candidates for Board
appointments and members can nominate
their own candidates subject to the Society’s
rules. All directors, both on appointment and
thereafter, must meet the tests of fitness and
propriety laid down by the PRA and the FCA.
The letters of appointment of non-executive
directors and service contracts of executive
directors are available for inspection
on request.
INFORMATION AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT
All new Board members receive a full, formal
and tailored induction when they join the
Board. The Chairman reviews non-executive
directors’ training and development needs
at their annual appraisal and ensures that
directors continually update their skills,
knowledge and understanding of the Society’s
business in order that they can properly fulfil
their roles.

The Board evaluates its own overall
performance annually and a review of
its performance and effectiveness is also
undertaken each year by the internal auditors.
RE-ELECTION
The Society’s Rules require that all directors be
submitted for election at the AGM following
their first appointment to the Board or at the
AGM in the following year, where they were
appointed between the end of the Society’s
financial year and the AGM itself. Thereafter, in
accordance with the Society’s Rules directors
are required to seek re-election every
three years.
The Nomination Committee’s main
responsibilities are to manage Board
appointments and the Board’s succession
plans, ensuring that the Board comprises
sufficient directors who are independent, fit
and proper and who can meet their collective
and individual responsibilities efficiently and
effectively. It reviews the collective skills
required of the Board and ensures that

The Directors’ Remuneration Report is on
page 21.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
FINANCIAL REPORTING
The responsibilities of the directors in relation
to the preparation of the Society’s accounts
and a statement that the directors consider
that the Society is a going concern are set out
on page 22.
INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT
The Board is responsible for the Society’s
systems of risk management and internal
control. Senior management are responsible
for identifying, evaluating, managing and
monitoring significant risks and systems of
internal control and the Board Risk Committee
and the Audit and Compliance Committee,
on behalf of the Board, are responsible for
reviewing the effectiveness of these processes.
Risks are identified on an ongoing basis and
evaluated over the business as a whole, with
appropriate action taken to manage and
control any emerging new risks. The Board has
reviewed and is satisfied that the Society has
sound risk management and internal control
systems and that these systems have been in
place throughout the period under review.

The Audit and Compliance Committee meets
at least quarterly. All directors are members
of this Committee except for the Chairman,
Chief Executive, Finance Director and
Operations Director who are in attendance.
The Committee meets with the internal
auditors at every meeting and at least twice a
year with the external auditors, and evaluates
its performance and effectiveness on an annual
basis. The Committee holds a private meeting
with the external and internal auditors when
appropriate and at least once a year.
Internal Auditors
In accordance with the Chartered Institute
of Internal Audit’s (CIIA) recommendations
on “Effective Internal Audit in the Financial
Services sector” the internal auditors present
an annual report to the Committee, setting
out their conclusion on the effectiveness of the
control environment and the independence
and adequacy of resourcing of internal audit
during the period covered by the annual audit
plan. This report informs the Committee on its
review of the effectiveness of the internal audit
process and audit quality.

Hinckley & Rugby Building Society
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STRATEGIC REPORT
GOVERNANCE

REMUNERATION

AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE
AND AUDITORS
The Audit and Compliance Committee
comprises the non-executive directors and
during the last year was chaired by Mr David
Woodward. The Board is satisfied that at least
one member of the Committee has recent
and relevant financial experience and that
the Committee as a whole has competence
relevant to the sector in which the Society
operates. It considers and recommends the
appointment and removal of the internal
and the external auditors and monitors their
effectiveness and independence. Additionally, it
ensures that there are effective whistle-blowing
arrangements in place to enable employees
to raise, in confidence, any concerns about
possible improprieties.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The performance and effectiveness of each
non-executive director is evaluated by the
Chairman, taking into account the views of
other directors and ensuring that all nonexecutive directors are able to allocate
sufficient time to the Society to discharge their
responsibilities effectively. The Chairman is
similarly evaluated by the Senior Independent
Director, taking into account the views of the
other directors.

those skills are present when proposing new
appointments. The Committee considers and
recommends to the Board whether a director
should be submitted for re-election. Nonexecutive directors are not normally expected
to serve more than three full three year terms.
Any term lasting beyond six years will be
subject to a rigorous review and in addition,
for any term lasting beyond nine years for a
non-executive director, that director will offer
themselves for re-election on an annual basis.

OTHER INFORMATION

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
The Board evaluates the performance and
effectiveness of individual directors, and of
the Board as a whole and its committees.
Executive directors are evaluated within
the Society’s appraisal framework generally,
to include a review of their performance
objectives which are set each year, and the
Remuneration Committee approves their
remuneration and bonus scheme as set out
in the Remuneration Policy. The Directors’
Remuneration Report (on page 21) explains
the policy and practices adopted.

Governance

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
The Audit and Compliance Committee
uses the results of the effectiveness review
to determine whether it is appropriate to
recommend reappointment of the internal
auditors or to consider a tender process.
A tender was last conducted in 2006 when
Deloitte LLP were appointed and the date for
the next tender is currently under review.
External Auditor
The Audit and Compliance Committee has
adopted a formal framework in its review
of the effectiveness of the external audit
process and audit quality. An assessment tool
is completed each year by each member of
the Audit and Compliance Committee and
by the executive directors and the Chairman,
with feedback also sought from members of
the senior management team. The assessment
tool adopted is comprehensive and includes
questions which are completed by way of a
formal questionnaire on the following areas:
the audit partner, the audit team, the planning
and scope of the audit and identification of
areas of audit risk, the execution of the audit,
the role of management in an effective audit
process, communications by the auditors with
the Audit and Compliance Committee, how
the auditors support the work of the Audit
and Compliance Committee, how the audit
contributes insights and added value, a review
of independence and objectivity of the audit
firm and the quality of the formal audit report
to members.
The Audit and Compliance Committee use
the results of the annual auditor’s effectiveness
review to determine whether it is appropriate
to recommend reappointment of the
external auditor.
Following a tender undertaken in 2016, KPMG
LLP was appointed as auditor from 2017,
replacing PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.
The only non-audit services provided by KPMG
LLP have been in respect of Pillar 2 pension
obligations sensitivity analysis and iXBRL
conversion services. The Society also meets
the expenses of Hinckley and Rugby Pension
Scheme Limited (see note 30(c)) some of
which are in respect of services provided by
KPMG LLP (as disclosed in note 7).
The Audit and Compliance Committee
monitors the level of non-audit fees to ensure
that auditor’s objectivity and independence
is safeguarded.
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AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE
AND THE ANNUAL REPORT AND
ACCOUNTS
The Audit and Compliance Committee
provides advice to the Board on whether
the annual report and accounts, taken as a
whole, is fair, balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary for
members to assess the Society’s performance,
business model and strategy.

BOARD RISK COMMITTEE
The Board Risk Committee comprises all the
directors and during the last year was chaired
by Mr Gary Wilkinson. The Committee is
responsible for ownership of the Society’s
risk governance arrangements, risk appetite,
risk monitoring and liquidity risk and
capital management frameworks including
the Society’s ILAAP, ICAAP and Capital
Requirements Directive Pillar 3 disclosures.

The Committee undertakes a comprehensive
review of the annual report and accounts
before advising the Board, with a focus on:
ensuring that appropriate weight is given to
bad news as well as good, the description of
the business model, the strategy and risks are
appropriate, the disclosed risks are genuinely
the principal risks the Board are concerned
about, the link between the business model
and strategy and risks and performance are
clearly articulated and that important policies
and transactions and significant changes from
prior periods are highlighted.

The Committee ensures that business
proposals are aligned with its stated conduct
risk appetite, and that risks to members have
been identified and appropriate actions put in
place to mitigate and monitor such risks.

Throughout the year the Committee receives
reports on risk and control standards
employed by the Society from two external
bodies: Deloitte LLP who provide internal
audit services and RSM Risk Advisory Services
LLP who provide compliance advisory and
oversight services. These two bodies review
business risk areas and departments on a
rotation basis, with higher risk areas reviewed
more regularly and at least once per year.
From a combination of these independent
reviews and presentations from executive
directors and management, the Committee
has concluded that the Society operates an
effective system of control.
After discussion with management and the
external auditors, the Audit and Compliance
Committee determined that the key risks
of misstatement of the Society’s financial
statements related to the risk of management
override of controls, the risk of fraud in
revenue recognition and the risk of impairment
of loans. Other areas of focus included:
hedge accounting and valuation of derivatives,
retirement benefit obligation valuation, going
concern, accounting for financial instruments,
financial control process and reporting,
taxation risk, other provisions and the IT
environment. Consequently, audit work was
planned to give assurance in these areas.

The Committee meets at least quarterly
and more frequently if considered necessary.
The Committee evaluates its performance and
effectiveness on an annual basis.
The Committee undertakes a robust
assessment of the Society’s principal risks
and how they are managed and mitigated
(see “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” on
page 17). The Committee also carries out an
assessment, as part of its Reverse Stress Test
Framework, of the impact if principal risks
coincide or if a number of non-principal risks
represent a “compound” principal risk.

STRATEGIC REPORT
GOVERNANCE

The Society’s 2018 AGM will take place on 21st
March 2018.

Committee Members’ Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings during the year ended 30th November 2017

Colin Franklin
Chairman
Andrew Astin (retired 22nd March 2017)
Geneane Bell
Barbara Mellish
(appointed 22nd March 2017)
Paul Parmenter
(retired 22nd March 2017)
Andrew Payton
Finance Director and Deputy Chief Executive
Dean Waddingham
Operations Director
(appointed 17th May 2017)
Christopher White
Chief Executive
Gary Wilkinson
David Woodward
Senior Independent Director
Nemone Wynn-Evans
(appointed 22nd March 2017)

Audit and
Compliance

Risk

*

*

4(4)

1(1)

-(1)

1(1)

2(2)

5(5)

4(4)

1(1)

1(1)

4(4)

3(3)

3(3)

1(1)

1(1)

1(1)

1(1)

11(11)

*

*

*

4(4)

6(6)

*

*

*

3(3)

Board

Nomination

11(11)

2(2)

3(3)

1(1)

11(11)

2(2)

8(8)

Remuneration

11(11)

*

*

*

4(4)

11(11)

2(2)

2(2)

5(5)

4(4)

11(11)

2(2)

2(2)

5(5)

4(4)

7(8)

1(1)

1(1)

3(4)

3(3)

* Not a member of this committee
( ) = number of meetings eligible to attend
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DIALOGUE WITH MEMBERS
As befits a mutual organisation, the Board
as a whole takes responsibility for ensuring
that a satisfactory dialogue takes place with
its members. As well as the AGM mailing to
savers and borrowers, the Society also uses
questionnaires to seek the views of savers and
borrowers. A Members’ Panel has also been
set up, enabling the Society to communicate
with members on matters of interest and
where members can ask questions of senior
management and directors. Open days are
also held at branch offices where directors are
available to answer questions from members.

CONSTRUCTIVE USE OF THE AGM
All members of the Board are normally present
at the AGM each year and are all available to
answer questions, particularly the chairpersons
of the main committees. Votes on AGM
resolutions can be cast online as well as by
post, by proxy or in person and the results of
all votes at the AGM are made available online.

OTHER INFORMATION

RELATIONS WITH MEMBERS

Governance

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
for the year ended 30th November 2017

COLIN FRANKLIN

DAVID WOODWARD

Chairman

Senior Independent Director

Colin joined the Society in June 2015 as a
non-executive director and in March 2016 became
Chairman. Having worked at building societies
for 42 years, he has a wealth of expertise and
experience in the sector.
His most recent role was as interim Chief Executive
at Coventry Building Society, where he had been a
Board member since 2008.
During his 35-year career at the Coventry, Colin
had many roles including sales and marketing
director and managing director of its subsidiary
lender, Godiva Mortgages.

David joined the Hinckley & Rugby as a
non-executive director in January 2015 and is
Chairman of the Audit & Compliance Committee
as well as Senior Independent Director. He is a
qualified Chartered Management Accountant.
He has held a number of senior financial positions
with organisations based in the East Midlands,
including Express Dairies plc. More recently he was
Finance Director of train operator Midland Mainline
and coach operator National Express.

The directors have pleasure in presenting their
152nd report and the accounts for the year
ended 30th November 2017.

NET INTEREST MARGIN
In the year ended 30th November 2017, the
net interest margin was 1.15% (2016 1.17%).
The net interest margin represents net interest
receivable as a percentage of mean total assets.

BUSINESS OBJECTIVES AND
ACTIVITIES
The principal purpose of the Society is that of
making loans which are secured on residential
property and are funded substantially by its
members. The primary business objectives
are to continue to promote savings and home
ownership through competitive rates of
interest and a high quality of service.
The Society’s business activities and future
plans are reviewed in the Business Review on
pages 1 to 11.

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR AND KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
The Board monitors the overall progress of the
Society against a number of financial measures
that are set out below. Other non-financial
measures include customer satisfaction surveys,
complaints statistics and staff turnover.
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MANAGEMENT EXPENSES
For the year ended 30th November 2017,
the Society’s ratio of administrative expenses,
depreciation and amortisation in relation to
mean total assets was 1.03% (2016 1.10%).
Expenses need to be controlled so that the
Society operates as efficiently as possible
while providing the service that members
require. Administrative expenses, depreciation
and amortisation totalled £7.11m (2016
£6.66m). This category did increase because
of investment in our IT infrastructure, the cost
of compliance with regulatory requirements,
recruitment costs and additional staff costs
as the Society improved its capacity for
future growth.

PROFIT AFTER TAX
The profit for the year after taxation was
£1,009,000 compared to £240,000 in the
previous year. Whilst as a mutual organisation
the maximisation of profits is not paramount,
the Society needs to maintain sufficient
reserves to ensure its on-going financial
strength, which it continues to do.
CAPITAL
At 30th November 2017, the Society’s gross
capital was £40.7m (2016 £40.4m), being
5.8% of shares and borrowings (2016 6.8%).
Gross capital represents the sum of the general
reserve and the available for sale reserve as
shown in the balance sheet. Free capital was
£38.3m (2016 £37.9m), being 5.5% of shares
and borrowings (2016 6.4%). Free capital is
gross capital and collective loss provision less
tangible fixed assets, intangible fixed assets
and investment properties as shown in the
balance sheet.

ANDREW PAYTON

Non-executive director

Finance Director

STRATEGIC REPORT

BARBARA MELLISH

Non-executive director

Barbara joined the Society as a non-executive
director in March 2017.
She is a qualified risk manager and had a 30-year
career at Barclays, her final role being the Director
of Card Scheme Global Governance, before
joining the not-for-profit side of banking at UK
Payments. Her position there was the Director
of Payments Integrity and Security for the UK’s
banking infrastructure. This was a cross-sector
financial services role working alongside the Bank of
England, the FCA and the PRA, as well as providing
Government and senior civil servant liaison.

Andrew joined the Society in 2007 as Finance
Director, having previously held senior finance
roles in a number of other organisations, mostly
in the retail financial services sector. Within the
Society he has responsibility for financial planning
and reporting, treasury, risk management, business
development, property and administrative services.
He is an economics graduate and qualified as a
Chartered Accountant in 1989.

SHARES AND DEPOSITS
The balances held by shareholders and
depositors increased during the year by
£104.2m (2016 £64.9m). Their combined
balances at 30th November 2017, amounted
to £698.7m (2016 £594.5m). This represented
an increase during the year in balances held by
shareholders and depositors of 17.5% (2016
12.2%).

TOTAL ASSETS
Total assets increased during the year
by £103.8m (2016 £65.4m) and at 30th
November 2017, amounted to £740.5m (2016
£636.7m). This represented an increase in total
assets during the year of 16.3% (2016 11.4%).

CREDIT RISK
Credit risk is the risk that members or
counterparties will not meet their financial
obligations to the Society as they fall due.
For a building society, this risk is most likely
to present itself in the potential inability of
members or treasury counterparties to repay
their mortgage or other loan commitments.

LIQUID ASSETS
The total of investments and cash at bank and
in hand at 30th November 2017, amounted to
£116.7m (2016 £90.2m) and represented 16.7%
of shares and borrowings (2016 15.2%).
LOANS AND ADVANCES
£193.1m was advanced on first charge
mortgages of freehold and leasehold premises
during 2017 (2016 £171.9m). At the end of the
year loans and advances to members, net of
provisions, totalled £618.5m (2016 £539.8m).
At 30th November 2017 there were no
cases in which borrowers were in arrears
with their repayments for 12 months or more
(2016 none).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES
The Society seeks to understand and manage
the various risks that arise from its operations.
The principal risks facing the Society and the
procedures put in place to manage them are
described below.

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES
The Society defines the risks it faces in five
categories. These are credit risk, interest rate
risk, liquidity risk, operational risk (including
financial crime) and conduct risk.
In addition to these, the Society is also
at risk from uncertainty in the economic
environment, including as a result of Brexit,
which could impact markets in which we
operate. For example, the strength of the
UK economy and interest rate levels could
impact the demand for our products and our
customers’ ability to pay their mortgages.

OTHER INFORMATION

Geneane joined Hinckley & Rugby as a
non-executive director in July 2013.
Prior to joining the Society her career with the
Lloyds Banking Group spanned 38 years, the last
15 of which specialised in risk management and
compliance with regulation.
Her last role was Head of Compliance and Conduct
Risk for the Lloyds Retail Bank. Geneane has
extensive experience of working with the UK’s
financial services regulators.
Geneane is a director of Hinckley and Rugby
Pension Scheme Limited.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOVERNANCE

GENEANE BELL

Mortgage credit risk
Mortgage credit risk is managed through
the Society’s underwriting process, which
seeks to ensure that members only assume
a debt that they can afford to repay, thereby
safeguarding both themselves and the
Society. Should members find themselves in
financial difficulty, the Society has established
procedures to ensure that it responds
appropriately. Usually, this involves working
with the member to clear arrears or making
other arrangements commensurate with the
member’s circumstances; should the situation
deteriorate significantly, it can involve the
Society taking possession of the underlying
property. Whether the Society incurs a loss
as a result of taking possession, is critically
dependent on the value realised from the
property. The Society monitors the impact of
house price movements by carrying out stress
tests of its mortgage book to take account
of actual and projected movements in house
Hinckley & Rugby Building Society
Annual Report and Accounts 2017
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT(continued)
for the year ended 30th November 2017

DEAN WADDINGHAM

CHRIS WHITE

Operations Director

Chief Executive

Dean joined the Society in May 2017 as Operations
Director, having held a variety of senior roles
within the retail financial services industry,
including 14 years in the building society sector.
Within the Society, Dean enjoys responsibility for
the Mortgage, Savings and IT Departments.
Dean is a Chartered Director, a Fellow of the
Chartered Institute of Bankers, Institute of
Directors, Chartered Institute of Marketing and
Chartered Management Institute, and holds an
MBA from Henley Management College.

price indices on the expected value of any
properties taken into possession. The Society’s
exposure to mortgage credit risk is managed
by the Mortgage Services Department, which
reports monthly to the Board on credit risk
issues. Details of the number of the Society’s
members who are one month or more in
arrears are given on page 54. The breakdown
of the Society’s provision for loan impairment is
reported in note 14 of the accounts.
Credit risk within the treasury function
Credit risk within the treasury function arises
from the risk that counterparties will be unable
to repay loans and other financial instruments
that the treasury function holds as part of
its liquidity portfolio. This risk is managed
by restrictions on the type of assets held,
an assessment of the credit worthiness of
counterparties and by working within exposure
limits for each counterparty. These issues
are reported at meetings of the Assets and
Liabilities Committee (ALCO). Nearly all
of the Society’s liquidity is currently held on
deposit with the Bank of England or invested
in UK Government stock, reducing credit
risk. The Society has no provisions for loan
impairment against any treasury counterparties.
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Chris joined the Society in 1989 and was appointed
to the Board as Finance Director in 1993.
He became Chief Executive in 2007.
After gaining a degree in economics he qualified as
a Chartered Accountant in 1981 and worked at a
number of companies in the Rover Group before
joining Hinckley & Rugby.
He is a Governor at Dorothy Goodman School
in Hinckley.

INTEREST RATE RISK
Interest rate risk is the risk that income or
expense arising from the Society’s assets and
liabilities may change adversely as a result
of changes in interest rates. The Society’s
policy is to manage its exposure to this
risk within prudent limits. It does this
through a combination of matching assets
and liabilities with offsetting interest rate
characteristics and by the use of interest
rate swaps and caps. Control of interest
rate risk exposure is managed by the ALCO
and, through that Committee, is reported to
the Board Risk Committee and the Board.
Interest rate risk arises from the different
interest rate characteristics of the Society’s
mortgages, savings products and other
financial instruments.
A particular category of interest rate risk
is basis risk. This is the risk that assets and
liabilities that are linked to different variable
rate indices (such as Bank Base Rate and
LIBOR) may not move in accordance with each
other. This risk is managed by placing limits on
the volumes of assets and liabilities not held at
administered rates, which are subject to change
at the Society’s discretion. Administered rate
balances and loans therefore provide the
Society with an opportunity to reduce basis
risk, subject to considerations around the fair

treatment of customers and the commercial
impact of implementing rate changes that have
an adverse customer impact.
The issue of fixed rate mortgages and fixed
rate savings products exposes an organisation
that principally operates within a variable rate
environment (such as the Society) to the risk
that interest rate fluctuations could cause
either a reduction in interest income or an
increase in interest expense relative to the
other interest flows. Where the Society has
issued fixed rate mortgages, the risk is that a
general increase in interest rates would leave
the Society facing higher interest expense
as the rates paid on members’ savings goes
up, but without a compensating increase in
interest income.
In these circumstances, the Society would
typically take out an interest rate swap with a
counterparty bank, under which the Society’s
fixed rate income is exchanged for one based
on a variable rate, which would be expected
to follow the general pattern of interest
rate movements and thereby reduce the
Society’s exposure.
Similarly, in cases of issuing fixed rate savings
products, the Society would typically take out
an interest rate swap, under which the Society
receives a fixed rate of interest and pays a

Non-executive director

STRATEGIC REPORT

NEMONE WYNN-EVANS

Non-executive director

variable rate, or match these fixed rate savings
products against fixed rate mortgages of a
similar duration.
Further details of how the Society manages
interest rate risk are given in note 31.
The Society continues to invest in the
further development of its interest rate risk
management systems.
LIQUIDITY RISK
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Society will
be unable to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. The risk is managed principally by
the holding of cash and other easily realisable
assets. The Society holds funds on deposit
with the Bank of England and large UK clearing
banks that are realisable at very short notice
and makes investments in UK Government
securities. These holdings are monitored on
a daily basis. The Society carries out regular
stress tests that simulate cash outflows under
varying degrees of assumed liquidity stress.
The Society also forecasts its cash flows, taking
account of expected inflows and outflows
of funds from retail and wholesale funding
sources and of expected loan advances and
repayments. The results of the stress tests and
forecasts are reported to ALCO and via that
Committee to the Board Risk Committee and
the Board.

Nemone joined the Society as a non-executive
director in March 2017.
Her background is in the equity capital markets
sector of the City of London, including as a former
Finance Director on the main board of a stock
exchange, having begun her career in corporate
finance and broking.
She is currently Chief Operating Officer at a
multi-family office and she also holds non-executive
positions as Senior Independent Director of a
mutual friendly society in the savings and insurance
sector and on the board of the commercial
subsidiary of Coventry University.
Nemone is a Fellow of the Chartered Institute
for Securities & Investment and holds an MBA
from Cranfield.

Further details of how the Society manages
liquidity risk are given in note 31.
OPERATIONAL RISK
Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people
and systems or from external events, and
includes legal risks. These risks are managed
as an integral part of the operations of each
of the Society’s business units. The Society’s
management has a responsibility to understand
how operational risk impacts their area of the
business and for putting in place controls or
mitigating activities.
The Society recognises the increased threat of
cyber-attacks being faced across the financial
sector in general and continues to ensure that
it has an appropriate capability to detect and
respond to cyber security issues effectively,
safeguarding the organisation and its members.
The Society strives to keep pace with market
trends in the prevention and detection of
potential attacks, in order to safeguard the
business and protect its members’ data and
savings. This will be a permanent feature of our
risk management and there has been further
investment in this area over the last year to
improve protection.

OTHER INFORMATION

Gary joined the Society as a non-executive director
in December 2014 and is currently Chairman of
the Board Risk Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. He is a qualified Chartered
Accountant and has extensive experience within
financial services, in both the building society and
banking sectors.
He has held senior positions within Alliance &
Leicester plc and Nationwide Building Society,
Newcastle Building Society and Cambridge &
Counties Bank.
He is currently Chief Executive Officer of
Redwood Bank.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOVERNANCE

GARY WILKINSON

CONDUCT RISK
Retail conduct of business comprises high-level
principles of treating customers fairly, specific
regulatory requirements, wider legal provisions,
any relevant codes of practice and statements
from the FCA. The directors believe that good
business practice, high ethical standards and
compliance with laws and regulations are all
entirely compatible and the Society has a low
appetite for all retail conduct of business risk,
ensuring good outcomes for members in all
our dealings.
The Society focuses on long-term customer
relationships and has a culture that places
our members at the heart of our business,
underpinned by robust governance structures
designed to identify, manage and reduce risks
of unfair treatment.
Management information measuring retail
conduct of business risk is reviewed regularly
by a senior management committee which
reports to the Board Risk Committee.
During the year the Board Risk Committee
also ensured that new business proposals
were aligned with the Board’s retail conduct of
business risk appetite, so that risks to members
were identified and appropriate actions put in
place to mitigate and monitor such risks.

Hinckley & Rugby Building Society
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT(continued)
for the year ended 30th November 2017

THE SOCIETY’S RISK
GOVERNANCE PROCEDURES
Operational risk management is the
responsibility of the Operational Risk
Committee, which reports to the Board Risk
Committee. The Board Risk Committee is
responsible for identifying the key risks facing
the Society and determining their importance
given their potential impact and likelihood of
occurrence. The Committee also ensures that
the Society’s response to all identified risks is
appropriate. The risks that the Society faces, its
stated risk appetite and the capital it allocates
against those risks are documented as part
of the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Process (ICAAP). The ICAAP is reviewed
and approved by the Board Risk Committee.
Members and other external stakeholders are
able to view a summary of the Society’s risks,
its risk management approach and its capital
position in the Pillar 3 Disclosure Document
which is prepared to comply with the Capital
Requirements Directive and is available on
the Society’s website. Specific issues around
liquidity risk management are documented
as part of the Society’s Internal Liquidity
Adequacy Assessment Process (ILAAP), which
is reviewed by ALCO and the Board Risk
Committee. Both the ICAAP and the ILAAP
are subject to periodic review by the PRA.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT,
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Society uses financial instruments for
risk management purposes. The nature of
these instruments, together with financial risk
management objectives and policies, are set
out in note 31 to the accounts.

CREDITOR PAYMENT POLICY
For all trade creditors it is the Society’s policy
to agree the terms of payment at the start
of trading with that supplier and to pay in
accordance with its contractual and other
legal obligations.
The creditor days were 10 days at 30th
November 2017 (2016 6 days).

DONATIONS
During the year, charitable donations totalling
£16,613 (2016 £12,469) were made, mainly to
local organisations. There were no donations
for political purposes.
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DIRECTORS

STAFF

The following members were directors of the
Society during the year:

Every year brings a new challenge and every
year, unfailingly, our staff and agents rise to that
challenge. The directors really appreciate the
efforts of everyone and have great pleasure in
recording their appreciation and thanks to all
for their tremendous levels of commitment.

Colin Franklin

(Chairman)

David Woodward	(Senior Independent
Director)
Andrew Astin	(retired 22nd
March 2017)
Geneane Bell
Barbara Mellish	(appointed 22nd
March 2017)
Paul Parmenter	(retired 22nd
March 2017)
Andrew Payton	(Finance Director and
Deputy Chief Executive)
Dean Waddingham 	(Operations Director,
appointed 17th
May 2017)
Christopher White

(Chief Executive)

Gary Wilkinson
Nemone
Wynn-Evans	(appointed 22nd
March 2017)
Andrew Astin and Paul Parmenter retired from
the Board after the Annual General Meeting
in 2017. Andrew and Paul played a significant
role in the Society’s development over the
last decade, helping to guide the Society
safely through and beyond the financial crisis
and the Board wishes them a long and very
happy retirement.
The directors retiring by rotation and being
eligible offering themselves for re-election in
accordance with the rules, are Andrew Payton
and Geneane Bell.
Barbara Mellish, Nemone Wynn-Evans and
Dean Waddingham joined the Board in 2017
and being eligible will, in accordance with the
Society’s Rules, offer themselves for election at
the Annual General Meeting in 2018.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
The independent auditor, KPMG LLP, who was
appointed on 22nd March 2017, has expressed
a willingness to continue in office and a motion
for their reappointment will be proposed at the
Annual General Meeting.
The directors who held office at the date of
approval of this Directors’ Report confirm
that, so far as they are each aware, there is
no relevant audit information of which the
Society’s auditor is unaware; and each director
has taken all the steps that they ought to
have taken as a director to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Society’s auditor is aware of
that information.
On behalf of the Board

COLIN FRANKLIN
Chairman
24th January 2018

The overall policy of the Board as
recommended by the Committee is set
out below:

The Committee is responsible for determining,
on behalf of the Board, the policy and the level
of remuneration of the Chairman, executive
directors and other senior managers and
for ensuring that the Society’s remuneration
policy is compliant with the Financial
Conduct Authority’s Remuneration Code
and Remuneration Part of the Prudential
Regulation Authority’s Rulebook.
The Committee meets at least once a
year, with additional meetings as necessary.
Independent external advice is sought when
required and information on comparative
remuneration packages within the building
society industry and wider UK financial sector
is also used.
The Committee comprises all the independent
directors of the Society.

POLICY FOR INDEPENDENT
DIRECTORS
The remuneration of all independent directors
is reviewed on an annual basis by the executive
directors and the Chairman, using external
data from other building societies and
comparable financial organisations.
The Chairman and the independent directors
are only entitled to fees and do not participate
in any performance pay scheme, pension
arrangements or other benefits. Nor do they
have service contracts. All appointments are
subject to a notice period of three months.

i) the remuneration of executive directors
(consisting of basic salary, performance
related bonus, pension arrangements and
other benefits) should be competitive with
those of other comparable organisations
in the financial sector, in order to attract
and retain high calibre individuals with the
necessary skills and experience for the
Society to succeed;
ii) p
 art of the remuneration should be based
on the Society’s financial, business and
service performance compared to a range
of objectives (including compliance with the
Board’s risk appetite), so as to encourage and
reward behaviours which are in the interests
of members and other stakeholders; and
iii) p
 ersonal reviews of the executive directors
should be carried out at least annually,
in order to assess their performance in
meeting individual and strategic objectives.
BASIC SALARY
The Society’s reward strategy for all employees
aims to pay competitive market salaries and
to recognise individual development and
progression through the annual salary and
personal review processes.
PERFORMANCE RELATED BONUS
The executive directors are eligible for a nonpensionable performance bonus, the elements
of which reflect the Society’s key measures
of financial strength, cost control, operational
efficiency and customer satisfaction.

OTHER BENEFITS
Each executive director is provided with a
car allowance, private medical insurance and
permanent health insurance.
SERVICE CONTRACTS
The general policy for appointments at
executive director level includes a contractual
notice period of 12 months, with executive
directors required to give a notice period of
six months.
On behalf of the Remuneration Committee

GARY WILKINSON
Committee Chair
24th January 2018
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

PENSIONS
The Chief Executive and the Finance Director
are deferred members of the Society’s defined
benefit pension scheme which was closed to
future accrual on 1st January 2010. The Finance
Director and the Operations Director are
active members of the Society’s defined
contribution pension scheme and the Society
makes contributions to the scheme of 14.25%
of pensionable salary, with the cost equivalent
to 4% of pensionable salary recovered through
a salary sacrifice scheme. The Chief Executive
was also a member on similar terms until 31st
March 2014.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLICY FOR EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

OTHER INFORMATION

Full details of individual directors’ remuneration
are contained in note 9 to the accounts.

STRATEGIC REPORT

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL
REPORT, THE ANNUAL BUSINESS
STATEMENT, THE DIRECTORS’
REPORT AND THE ANNUAL
ACCOUNTS
The directors are responsible for preparing the
Annual Report, Annual Business Statement,
Directors’ Report and the annual accounts in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.
The Building Societies Act 1986 (“the Act”)
requires the directors to prepare annual
accounts for each financial year. Under that
law they have elected to prepare the annual
accounts in accordance with UK Accounting
Standards and applicable law (UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice), including
FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland.
The annual accounts are required by law to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Society as at the end of the financial
year and of the income and expenditure of the
Society for the financial year.
In preparing these annual accounts, the
directors are required to:
• select suitable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently;
• make judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent;
• state whether applicable UK Accounting
Standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained
in the annual accounts;
• assess the Society’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern; and
• use the going concern basis of accounting
unless they either intend to liquidate the
Society or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.
In addition to the annual accounts the Act
requires the directors to prepare, for each
financial year, an Annual Business Statement
and a Directors’ Report, each containing
prescribed information relating to the business
of the Society.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR ACCOUNTING RECORDS
AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The directors are responsible for ensuring that
the Society:
• keeps proper accounting records that
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Society,
in accordance with the Act; and
• takes reasonable care to establish, maintain,
document and review such systems and
controls as are appropriate to its business
in accordance with the rules made by the
Financial Conduct Authority and Prudential
Regulation Authority under the Financial
Services and Markets Act 2000.
The directors are responsible for such internal
control as they determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and have
general responsibility for taking such steps as
are reasonably open to them to safeguard the
assets of the Society and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities.
The directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the corporate
and financial information included on the
Society’s website. Legislation in the UK
governing the preparation and dissemination
of annual accounts may differ from legislation in
other jurisdictions.
On behalf of the Board

COLIN FRANKLIN
Chairman
24th January 2018

INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF HINCKLEY AND RUGBY BUILDING SOCIETY

1. OUR OPINION IS UNMODIFIED

No non-audit services prohibited by that standard were provided.

We have audited the annual accounts of Hinckley and Rugby
Building Society (‘the Society’) for the year ended 30th November
2017 which comprise the Society Income and Expenditure
Account, Statement of Comprehensive Income, Balance Sheet,
Statement of Changes in Members’ Interests, Cash Flow Statement
and the related notes, including the accounting policies in note 1.

Overview

Materiality:
Annual accounts as a whole

£160,000
0.4% of Total Reserves

Risks of material misstatement
Recurring risks

Loan impairment

In our opinion the annual accounts:
• give a true and fair view of the state of affairs the Society as at
30th November 2017 and of the income and expenditure of the
Society for the year then ended;
• have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting
standards, including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland; and
• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Building Societies Act 1986 and regulations made under it.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities are described below. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis
for our opinion. Our audit opinion is consistent with our report
to the audit committee. We were appointed as auditor by the
members on 22nd March 2017. The period of total uninterrupted
engagement is for one financial year ended 30th November
2017. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and we
remain independent of the Society in accordance with, UK ethical
requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard applicable to
public interest entities.

Hinckley & Rugby Building Society
Annual Report and Accounts 2017

23

Governance

2. KEY AUDIT MATTERS: OUR ASSESSMENT OF RISKS OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of the annual accounts and include the
most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified by us, including those which had the greatest effect
on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. We summarise below the key
audit matter in arriving at our audit opinion above, together with our key audit procedures to address this matter and, as required for public interest
entities, our results from those procedures. This matter was addressed, and our results are based on procedures undertaken, in the context of, and
solely for the purpose of, our audit of the annual accounts as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and consequently are incidental to that
opinion, and we do not provide a separate opinion on this matter.

Key audit matter

The risk

Our response

Loan impairment
(£400,000; 2016: £400,000)

Subjective estimate
Our procedures included:
Impairments include a collective impairment
• Benchmarking assumptions: We compared
provision for those loans where impairments have
the loan portfolio key metrics, including arrears
Refer to page 14 (Corporate Governance), been incurred but not yet individually identified.
trends and provision coverage with those of
note 1 (accounting policy) and note 16
comparable lenders and challenged these using
The
collective
impairment
provision
is
based
(financial disclosures)
our knowledge of recent impairment experience
primarily on the Society’s historical experience.
in this industry.
• Historical comparison: We critically assessed
the Society’s level of provision, against our
understanding and knowledge of the Society’s
historical experience.
• Assessing transparency: We assessed the
adequacy of the Society’s disclosures about
the degree of estimation involved in arriving at
the provision.
Our results
• We found the resulting estimate of the loan
portfolio impairment provision to be acceptable.

3. OUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY AND AN
OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT

Total Reserves
£40.7million

Materiality for the annual accounts as a whole was set at £160,000,
determined with reference to a benchmark of Total Reserves of
£40.7 million, of which it represents 0.4%.

Materiality

£160,000

£160,000

Whole financial
statements materiality

We agreed to report to the Audit Committee any corrected or
uncorrected identified misstatements exceeding £8,000, in addition
to other identified misstatements that warranted reporting on
qualitative grounds.
Our audit of the Society was undertaken to the materiality level
specified above and was performed at the Society’s head office
in Hinckley.

Total reserves
Materiality
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£8,000

Misstatements reported to the
audit committee

4. WE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT ON GOING
CONCERN
We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use
of the going concern basis of accounting is inappropriate or there is an
undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over
the use of that basis for a period of at least twelve months from the
date of approval of the annual accounts. We have nothing to report in
these respects.

5. WE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT ON THE OTHER
INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
The directors are responsible for the other information presented in the
Annual Report together with the annual accounts. Our opinion on the
annual accounts does not cover the other information and, accordingly,
we do not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated below,
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether, based on our annual accounts audit work, the
information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the annual
accounts or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work we have not
identified material misstatements in the other information.
ANNUAL BUSINESS STATEMENT AND DIRECTORS’ REPORT
In our opinion:
• the Annual Business Statement and the Directors’ Report have each
been prepared in accordance with the applicable requirements of the
Building Societies Act 1986 and regulations thereunder;
• the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year is
consistent with the accounting records and the annual accounts; and
• the information given in the Annual Business Statement (other than
the information upon which we are not required to report) gives a
true representation of the matters in respect of which it is given.

6. WE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT ON THE OTHER
MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO
REPORT BY EXCEPTION
Under the Building Societies Act 1986 we are required us to report to
you if, in our opinion:
• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Society; or
• the annual accounts are not in agreement with the accounting
records; or

7. RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 22, the
directors are responsible for: the preparation of annual accounts which
give a true and fair view; such internal control as they determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of annual accounts that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing
the Society’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Society or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the annual accounts as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud, other irregularities, or error, and to issue our
opinion in an auditor’s report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of the annual accounts. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud or other irregularities is higher than
for one resulting from error, as they may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control and may involve any area of law and regulation not just those
directly affecting the annual accounts.
A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’s
website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

8.THE PURPOSE OF OUR AUDIT WORK AND TO
WHOM WE OWE OUR RESPONSIBILITIES
This report is made solely to the Society’s members, as a body, in
accordance with section 78 of the Building Societies Act 1986. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Society’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Society and the Society’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

• we have not received all the information and explanations and access
to documents we require for our audit.
We have nothing to report in these respects.

SIMON CLARK (SENIOR STATUTORY AUDITOR)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
One Snowhill
Snow Hill Queensway
Birmingham
B4 6GH
24th January 2018
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INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
For the year ended 30th November 2017

Notes

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Interest receivable and similar income

3

13,243

12,635

Interest payable and similar charges

4

(5,351)

(5,559)

7,892

7,076

Net interest receivable
Fees and commissions receivable

190

349

Fees and commissions payable

(151)

(210)

394

(186)

43

40

Net gains/(losses) from derivative financial instruments

6

Profit on sale of tangible fixed assets and fair value gains on investment properties
5

42

48

32

23

29

8,433

7,146

7

(6,708)

(6,307)

Depreciation

19

(226)

(218)

Amortisation

18

(172)

(136)

1,327

485

Other operating income
Other finance income
Total income
Administrative expenses

Operating profit before provisions and Financial Services Compensation Scheme
Impairment losses on loans and advances to customers
Financial Services Compensation Scheme

14

–

–

30 (a)

(27)

(144)

Profit on ordinary activities before tax
Tax on profit on ordinary activities
Profit for the financial year
The notes on pages 31 to 62 form part of these accounts.
The above results are all derived from continuing operations.
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10

1,300

341

(291)

(101)

1,009

240

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
2016
£’000

1,009

240

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to the income and expenditure account
32

(760)

673

10 (b)

126

(114)

(634)

559

Realised gain on available for sale financial assets

–

(281)

Tax on items that have been reclassified to the income and expenditure account

3

58

Actuarial (losses)/gains recognised in the pension scheme
Movements in deferred tax relating to the pension scheme
Items that have been reclassified to the income and expenditure account

(223)

(631)

336

Total comprehensive income

378

576

OTHER INFORMATION

3
Other comprehensive income

GOVERNANCE

Profit for the financial year

2017
£’000

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes

STRATEGIC REPORT

For the year ended 30th November 2017
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BALANCE SHEET
As at 30th November 2017

Notes

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

– Cash in hand and balances with the Bank of England

11

106,344

81,477

– Loans and advances to credit institutions

12

5,291

3,641

– Debt securities

13

5,048

5,115

Derivative financial instruments

15

965

605

Loans and advances to customers

16
618,357

539,659

188

188

Assets
Liquid assets

– Loans fully secured on residential property
– Loans fully secured on land
Tangible fixed assets

19

1,951

2,090

Intangible fixed assets

18

709

576

Investment properties

19

143

208

Other assets

20

416

1,330

Deferred tax asset

21

521

676

Prepayments and accrued income

22

436

354

Post employment benefits

32

88

780

740,457

636,699

Total assets
Liabilities
Shares

23

557,363

504,756

Amounts owed to credit institutions

24

115,069

54,555

Amounts owed to other customers

25

26,256

35,171

Derivative financial instruments

15

513

1,272

Other liabilities

26

245

276

Accruals and deferred income

27

273

309

699,719

596,339

Total liabilities
General reserve

28

40,738

40,360

Available for sale reserve

29

–

–

Total reserves
Total reserves and liabilities
The notes on pages 31 to 62 form part of these accounts.
Approved by the Board of Directors on 24th January 2018.
COLIN FRANKLIN
Chairman

CHRISTOPHER WHITE
Chief Executive

ANDREW PAYTON
Finance Director
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40,738

40,360

740,457

636,699

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS’ INTERESTS

Balance at 1st December 2016
Profit for the financial year
Other comprehensive income for the period (net of tax)
– Re-measurement of defined benefit obligations
– Net gains from changes in financial assets
Total other comprehensive income for the period (net of tax)
Total comprehensive income for the financial year
Balance at 30th November 2017

40,360
1,009

–
–

40,360
1,009

28, 29

(634)
3
(631)
378
40,738

–
–
–
–
–

(634)
3
(631)
378
40,738

Notes

General
reserve
£’000

Available
for sale
reserve
£’000

Total
£’000

Balance at 1st December 2015
Profit for the financial year
Other comprehensive income for the period (net of tax)
– Re-measurement of defined benefit obligations
– Net gains from changes in financial assets
Total other comprehensive income for the period (net of tax)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the financial year
Balance at 30th November 2016

39,503
240

281
–

39,784
240

559
58
617
857
40,360

–
(281)
(281)
(281)
–

559
(223)
336
576
40,360

28, 29
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Total
£’000

Notes

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Available
for sale
reserve
£’000

OTHER INFORMATION

General
reserve
£’000

STRATEGIC REPORT

For the year ended 30th November 2017			

Financial Statements

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 30th November 2017

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

1,300

341

398

354

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit on ordinary activities before tax
Depreciation and amortisation
Revaluation of investment properties
(Increase)/decrease in fair value of derivative financial instruments and hedged items

–

(4)

(441)

285

–

(281)

Pension credits

(23)

(29)

Defined benefit pension contributions

(45)

(78)

Net profit on sale of tangible fixed assets and fair value gains on investment properties

(43)

(23)

Net gains on disposal and amortisation of debt securities

Net cash inflow from trading activities
Decrease/(increase) in other assets

1,146

565

914

(1,210)

Net increase in prepayments and accrued income

(223)

(4)

Net (decrease)/increase in accruals and deferred income

(127)

75

(79,364)

(64,877)

Net increase in loans and advances to customers*
Net increase in shares

52,768

35,816

Net increase in amounts owed to credit institutions

60,500

20,190

Net (decrease)/increase in amounts owed to other customers

(8,868)

8,811

(31)

(590)

Net decrease in other liabilities
Change in debt securities

67

–

Taxation paid

(7)

(1)

26,775

(1,225)

(415)

(553)

131

135

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of tangible and intangible fixed assets
Proceeds from disposal of tangible fixed assets and on sale of investment properties
Net disposal of debt securities
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities
Net increase in cash
Analysis of increase in cash
Cash in hand and balances with the Bank of England
Loans and advances to credit institutions repayable on demand

–

6,855

(284)

6,437

26,491

5,212

2017
£’000

Increase
£’000

2016
£’000

Increase
£’000

2015
£’000

106,344

24,867

81,477

2,701

78,776

5,249

1,624

3,625

2,511

1,114

111,593

26,491

85,102

5,212

79,890

* During the financial year the Society advanced £193,096,000 (2016 £171,862,000) of loans to customers. Redemptions and repayments for the financial year were £113,732,000
(2016 £106,985,000).
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
GENERAL INFORMATION
Hinckley & Rugby Building Society (the “Society”) is a building society and is incorporated in England. The Society is located within the United
Kingdom and its registered office address is 81 Upper Bond Street, Hinckley, Leicestershire LE10 1DG.
The principal business of the Society continues to be that of making loans which are secured on residential property and are funded substantially by
its members. The primary business objectives are to continue to promote savings and home ownership through competitive rates of interest and a
high quality of service.

STRATEGIC REPORT

for the year ended 30th November 2017

BASIS OF PREPARATION
The financial statements have been prepared under FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK” in conjunction with IAS 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” (via the option in FRS 102 para 11.2(b)). The amendments to FRS 102 issued in July 2015 have
been applied.
BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost convention, as modified by the following:
• Land and buildings which the Society lets to third parties on commercial terms are classified as investment properties and are stated at
current value.
• Available for Sale financial assets are stated at fair value.
• Other financial assets classified as Fair Value Through Profit or Loss are stated at fair value.
• Derivative financial instruments and the underlying hedged items are stated at fair value.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Society’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 2.
GOING CONCERN
The directors are satisfied that the Society has adequate resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the accounts
continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.
FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATIONAL CURRENCY
The Society’s functional and presentational currency is pounds sterling. The Society trades solely in the United Kingdom and has no material foreign
currency transactions. There is one class of business as set out under general information and reported in the Income and Expenditure Account.
INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE
Interest income and expense are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method. The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability (or, where appropriate,
a shorter period) to the carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Society estimates
future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument, but not future credit losses.
The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees and points paid or received that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or financial liability.
FEES AND COMMISSIONS
Fees and commissions receivable and payable, other than those recognised within mortgage interest, are recognised when the relevant service
is provided.
OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Other operating income includes rental income from investment properties and other sundry income. Rental income from investment properties is
recognised in the Income and Expenditure Account on a straight-line basis over the term of the leases.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Society has chosen to adopt the recognition and measurement provisions of IAS 39 – Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (as
adopted for use in the EU) and the disclosure requirements of section 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments.
a) Loans and advances
Loans and advances are predominantly mortgage loans to customers and advances to credit institutions held for liquidity and for derivative margin
management purposes. They are recorded at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Method, less any impairment losses, other than where an
adjustment is made as part of a fair value hedging arrangement.
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NOTE 1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

OTHER INFORMATION

The accounts have been prepared in compliance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102, ‘‘The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland’’ (‘‘FRS 102’’), and with the Building Societies (Accounts
and Related Provisions) Regulations 1998. The accounts comply with relevant British Bankers Association Statements of Recommended Practice in all
material respects.

GOVERNANCE

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
b) Financial liabilities
The Society’s financial liabilities are predominantly customer share accounts and amounts owed to credit institutions and to other customers.
They are recorded at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Method.
Other liabilities are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers, and are
recognised at transaction price.
c) Financial instruments at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
The Society has designated its debt security as fair value through profit or loss at inception as doing so allows for fair value movements on this
instrument to offset fair value movements on an associated derivative contract. This ensures the Income and Expenditure Account more fully reflects
the overall economic consequences of the transactions that have been undertaken and mitigates any accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise
from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases.
The Society is exposed to decreases in the fair value of fixed rate mortgages as interest rates increase and to decreases in the fair value of fixed
rate savings accounts as interest rates decrease. Derivatives in the form of interest rate swaps are used to mitigate this exposure. The Society uses
derivatives only for interest rate risk management purposes. It does not use derivatives for trading purposes.
Interest rate swaps are recognised, and subsequently measured, on balance sheet at fair value with gains and losses recognised in profit or loss,
whilst the underlying mortgage loans and customer share accounts are held at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Method. As a result, hedge
accounting is used to mitigate the accounting mismatches and the resulting Income and Expenditure Account volatility.
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their
fair value. Fair values of derivative financial instruments are calculated by discounted cash flow models using yield curves that are based on observable
market data. All derivatives are carried as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when their fair value is negative. Changes in the fair
value of derivatives are recognised immediately in the Income and Expenditure Account together with changes in the fair value of the hedged item
that are attributable to the hedged risk (to the extent that the Society is applying hedge accounting to these instruments – see further comments
below) within net gain/(loss) from derivative financial instruments.
Hedge accounting – On initial designation of the hedge, the society formally documents the relationship between the hedging instrument(s) and
hedged item(s), including the risk management objective and strategy in undertaking the hedge, together with the method that will be used to assess
the effectiveness of the hedging relationship. The society makes an assessment, both at inception of the hedge relationship and on an ongoing basis,
of whether the hedging instrument(s) is(are) expected to be highly effective in offsetting the changes in the fair value or cash flows of the respective
hedged item(s) during the period for which the hedge is designated, and whether the actual results of each hedge are within a range of 80–125%.
The society makes an assessment for a cash flow hedge of a forecast transaction, of whether the forecast transaction is highly probable to occur and
presents an exposure to variations in cash flows that could ultimately affect profit or loss.
“Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the variability in fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised
firm commitment, all changes in the fair value of the derivative are recognised immediately in profit or loss. The carrying value of the hedged item
is adjusted by the change in fair value that is attributable to the risk being hedged (even if it is normally carried at cost or amortised cost) and any
gains or losses on remeasurement are recognised immediately in the income statement (even if those gains would normally be recognised directly
in reserves). If hedge accounting is discontinued and the hedged financial asset or liability has not been derecognised, any adjustments to the carrying
amount of the hedged item are amortised into profit or loss using the effective interest method over the remaining life of the hedged item.
A summary of the effects of hedging and the associated fair value adjustments can be found in notes 6 and 15.
d) Available for Sale Assets – Debt securities
The Society classifies all gilts that are not designated as Fair Value Through Profit or Loss as Available for Sale. Available for Sale assets are nonderivative assets that are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time. They may be sold in response to needs for changes in liquidity or
changes in interest rates. The Society measures such debt securities at fair value, with subsequent changes in fair value being recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income, except for impairment losses and interest income which are recognised in the Income and Expenditure Account.
Further information regarding how fair values are determined can be found in note 31 to the accounts. Upon sale or maturity of the asset, the
cumulative gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive income are removed from available-for-sale reserves and recycled to the Income and
Expenditure Account.
e) Offsetting
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts presented in the financial statements when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Interest flows on
the Society’s derivative contracts are settled on this basis.
f) Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or are settled, or (b) substantially all the risks
and rewards of the ownership of the asset are transferred to another party or (c) control of the asset has been transferred to another party who has
the practical ability unilaterally to sell the asset to an unrelated third party without imposing additional restrictions.

32

Hinckley & Rugby Building Society
Annual Report and Accounts 2017

Impairment provisions are made to reduce the value of impaired loans and advances to the amount that is considered to be ultimately received
based upon objective evidence. Any increases or decreases in projected impairment losses are recognised through the Income and Expenditure
Account. If a loan is ultimately uncollectable, then any loss incurred by the Society on extinguishing the debt is written off against the provision for
loan impairment. Any subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are recognised through the Income and Expenditure Account.
FORBEARANCE STRATEGY
A range of forbearance options are available to support customers who are in financial difficulty, if it can be demonstrated that this difficulty can be
successfully overcome. The Society considers that if one or more of the options identified below can be agreed, this would always be preferable to
taking possession of the customer’s home. The main options offered are:
• An arrangement to clear outstanding arrears
• Payment holiday
• Capitalisation of arrears
• Extension of mortgage term
• Transfer to a new product which could help to reduce monthly payments
Customers requesting a forbearance option will need to provide information to support the request which the Society will use to assess whether it is
likely that the preferred arrangement will resolve the customer’s financial difficulties.
At the appropriate time the forbearance option that has been implemented is cancelled, with the exception of capitalisation of arrears, and the
customer’s normal contractual payment is recalculated. Loans that are subject to restructuring may only be classified as restructured and up-to-date
once a specified number and/or amount of qualifying payments have been received. These qualifying payments are set at a level appropriate to the
nature of the loan and the customer’s ability to make the repayment.
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON DEBT SECURITIES
At each balance sheet date the Society assesses whether or not there is objective evidence that individual debt instruments are impaired. All debt
instruments are UK gilts or treasury bills and therefore the likelihood of loss is remote. In reaching this conclusion the Society considers the financial
status of the counterparty and the levels of activity in the market.
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
The Society provides a range of benefits to employees, including annual bonus arrangements, paid holiday arrangements and defined benefit and
defined contribution pension plans.
(i) Short term benefits – Short term benefits, including holiday pay and other similar non-monetary benefits, are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the service is received.
(ii) Defined contribution pension plan – The Society operates a defined contribution plan for its employees. A defined contribution scheme
is one into which the Society and the employee pay fixed contributions into a separate entity. Payments into the defined contribution scheme are
charged to the Income and Expenditure Account as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme. Once the contributions have
been paid the Society has no further payment obligations. Amounts not paid are shown in accruals in the balance sheet. The assets of the plan are
held separately from the Society in independently administered funds.
(iii) Defined benefit pension plan – The Society operates a defined benefit plan for certain employees. A defined benefit scheme is one that
defines the benefit the employee will receive on retirement, depending on such factors as age and length of service. A defined benefit plan is a
pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan. The Society’s contributions to the scheme are liable to increase or decrease in order to ensure
liabilities to pensioners can continue to be met as they fall due. On 1st January 2010 the defined benefit scheme was closed to further accrual.
Society contributions payable to the defined benefit scheme are determined by a qualified actuary on the basis of a triennial valuation using the
projected unit method, and are charged to the Income and Expenditure Account over the periods benefiting from the employees’ services.
The charge to the Income and Expenditure Account over the financial year in relation to the defined benefit scheme is shown in note 32.
The asset/liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of the defined benefit plan is the fair value of the plan assets at the reporting date less
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting date. The defined benefit scheme was in surplus at 30th November
2017 and this has been recognised as an asset on the balance sheet. The judgements in relation to this are disclosed in note 2.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the
defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high quality sterling bonds of
comparable term to the related pension liability (‘discount rate’).
The fair value of plan assets includes the use of appropriate valuation techniques in accordance with FRS 102.
Hinckley & Rugby Building Society
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• Reduced monthly payment including interest only concession

STRATEGIC REPORT

In addition, the Society maintains a level of collective provision against losses that may have been incurred in the loan book but not reported and
where problems in realising the Society’s security may be anticipated due to factors such as problems with title, potential fraud within the loan
application or buildings having been constructed on contaminated land.

GOVERNANCE

IMPAIRMENT OF LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
Individual assessments are made of all mortgage loans that are in arrears or in possession or there is other objective evidence that all cash flows
will not be received and an exposure to potential loss exists after realisation of security at a forced sale discount. Based upon these assessments a
provision for individual impairment of these assets is made.

Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited each year to the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income. These amounts together with the return on plan assets, less amounts included in net interest, are
disclosed within the “Total gain recognised in other comprehensive income”.
The cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised in profit or loss as employee costs, except where included in the cost of an asset, comprises any cost
of plan introductions, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements.
The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets.
This cost is recognised in profit or loss as ‘Other finance income/(costs)’.
CASH IN HAND AND BALANCES WITH THE BANK OF ENGLAND
Cash in hand and balances with the Bank of England includes cash in hand and balances with less than three months’ maturity, including cash and
other eligible bills and loans and advances to credit institutions.
OTHER ASSETS
Derivatives are only executed with organisations that have an approved credit limit. The majority of the Society’s derivative agreements include
arrangements requiring that any movement in the value of the derivative be offset by the placing of cash collateral to reduce the resulting credit
exposure on a weekly basis. Cash deposited with the counterparty is held within Other Assets at cost.
TAXATION
Taxation expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax recognised in the reporting period. Tax is recognised in the Income and
Expenditure Account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Current or deferred taxation assets and liabilities are not discounted.
Current tax – Current tax is the amount of income tax payable in respect of the taxable profit for the year or prior years. Tax is calculated on the
basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the period end.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
Deferred tax – Deferred tax arises from timing differences that are differences between taxable profits and total comprehensive income as stated
in the financial statements. These timing differences arise from the inclusion of income and expenses in tax assessments in periods different from
those in which they are recognised in financial statements.
Deferred tax is recognised on all timing differences at the reporting date including property revaluations. Unrelieved tax losses and other deferred
tax assets are only recognised when it is probable that they will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future
taxable profits.
Deferred tax has been recognised in respect of all timing differences at the reporting date, but is not provided on differences that are expected to
be permanent.
Deferred tax is measured using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the period end, depending on the date at
which the timing differences are expected to reverse.
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Freehold investment properties are included in the balance sheet at fair value which is taken as being open market value. Movements in valuation
are posted through the Income and Expenditure Account. Open market value is reassessed annually by the directors, with periodic reassessment by
appropriately qualified third party valuers.
Details of the value of the properties are provided in note 19 to the financial statements.
INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS AND AMORTISATION
Intangible fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated amortisation. Amounts capitalised represent the costs of acquiring, developing
and installing computer software. They are amounts payable to third party suppliers and also values associated with time spent by the Society’s own
staff. Amortisation is provided at 20% per annum on a straight line basis, as an approximation of its useful economic life.
Where factors, such as technological advancement or changes in market price, indicate that residual value or useful life have changed, the residual
value, useful life or amortisation rate are amended prospectively to reflect the new circumstances.
The assets are reviewed for impairment if the above factors indicate that the carrying amount may be impaired.
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Cost includes the original purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
Depreciation is provided at rates designed to write down the cost or valuation of fixed assets to their residual values over their expected useful lives.
The following are approximations of the useful lives:

STRATEGIC REPORT

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION
Tangible fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation with the exception of certain freehold properties (or portions
thereof) which are commercially let and are therefore classified as investment properties, which are held at open market value.

• Freehold buildings and leasehold land and buildings with more than 50 years unexpired: 2% per annum on a straight line basis.
GOVERNANCE

• Leasehold land and buildings with less than 50 years unexpired: Equal annual instalments to expiry of the lease.
• Fixtures and fittings: 15% per annum on a straight line basis.
• Computer equipment: 20% to 33% per annum on a straight line basis.
• Motor vehicles: 25% per annum on a reducing balance basis.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The effect of any change is
accounted for prospectively.
Repairs, maintenance and minor inspection costs are expensed as incurred.
IMPAIRMENT
The carrying amount of the Society’s assets is reviewed at each balance sheet to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any
such indicators exist, the assets’ recoverable amount is reviewed. An impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of market value or the value in use of the respective asset. Impairment losses are recognised
in the Income and Expenditure Account.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as it arises provided the increased carrying value does not exceed that which it would have been had
no impairment loss been recognised.
PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES
A provision is recognised in the balance sheet if the Society has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits, which can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle the obligation. The Society is currently providing for costs
associated with the Financial Services Compensation Scheme as disclosed in note 30(a).
CONTINGENCIES
Contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingent liabilities arise as a result of past events when (i) it is not probable that there will be an outflow
of resources or that the amount cannot be reliably measured at the reporting date or (ii) when the existence will be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of uncertain future events not wholly within the Society’s control. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the financial statements
unless the probability of an outflow of resources is remote.
Contingent assets are not recognised. Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
OPERATING LEASES
At inception the Society assesses agreements that transfer the right to use assets. The assessment considers whether the arrangement is, or contains,
a lease based on the substance of the arrangement.
Leases that do not transfer all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases. All the Society’s leases are operating leases.
Payments under operating leases are charged to the Income and Expenditure Account on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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Freehold land is not depreciated.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

• Office equipment: 25% per annum on a straight line basis.

Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
NOTE 2 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Some asset and liability amounts reported in the accounts are based on management estimates, judgements and assumptions. Estimates and
assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These are described below.
a) Post employment benefits and recognition of pension surplus
The Society operates a defined benefit pension scheme and has an obligation to pay pension benefits to certain employees. Significant assumptions
(on such areas as life expectancy, asset valuations, discount rates on corporate bonds) have to be exercised in estimating the value of the assets
and liabilities of the scheme, and hence its net surplus or deficit. These assumptions are the responsibility of the directors, although they consult the
opinions of professional advisers when making them. The net asset or liability position disclosed in the accounts is particularly sensitive to the discount
rate used. The rate used is 2.75% (2016 2.90%). An increase in that rate of 0.05% would increase scheme net liabilities by £0.25m (2016 £0.25m).
There is judgement whether the Scheme rules give the Society unilateral control over any surplus when the Scheme ends, i.e. where the last
beneficiary has died or where the Scheme is wound-up.
The directors’ view that any surplus will pass to the Society, thereby disregarding the Trustee’s potential option to use any surplus on wind up.
This judgement is made on reviewing the Scheme rules and having sought professional advice.
b) Impairment of mortgage loans
The Society regularly reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in profit or
loss for the year, the Society assesses whether there is any observable data to indicate whether there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease can be identified within an individual loan in that portfolio. This evidence may include
observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a group, or national or local economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the group.
Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar
to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of
future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.
c) Effective Interest Rate
FRS 102 requires that all of the cash flows directly associated with financial instruments must be recognised in the Income and Expenditure Account
through the interest margin using the Effective Interest Method. When this approach is applied to the Society’s mortgage portfolio, estimates must
be made of the average life of each mortgage where a product fee or income is attached. Current assessments of the lives of mortgage accounts
indicate that they correspond very closely to the discount or fixed rate (depending on mortgage type) period applicable to each account and
correspondingly, fees and charges are spread on a straight line basis across this period. This will be kept under regular review against the Society’s
actual data and against market data.
d) Deferred tax asset recognition
The recognised deferred tax asset represents income taxes recoverable through future deductions from taxable profits and is recorded in the
balance sheet. Deferred income tax assets are recorded to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit is probable. The future taxable
profits and the amount of tax benefits that are probable in the future are based on a business plan prepared by management and extrapolated
results thereafter. The business plan is based on management expectations that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances and forecasts
the Society using the asset over three years which the directors have assessed as reasonable.
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On other liquid assets

12,417

44

179

–

347

242

312

(848)

(620)

13,243

12,635

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

5,086

5,123

491

594

(226)

(158)

5,351

5,559

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

42

48

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Instruments used to hedge loans and advances
– (Losses)/gains on hedging instruments
– (Losses)/gains on hedged items attributable to the hedged risk
Net ineffectiveness

1,234
(781)
453

(264)
7
(257)

Instruments used to hedge savings
– (Losses)/gains on hedging instruments
– Gains/(losses) on hedged items attributable to the hedged risk
Net ineffectiveness

(141)
111
(30)

73
(62)
11

56
(39)
(46)
(29)

(30)
35
55
60

394

(186)

Net interest expense on derivative financial instruments

All interest receivable and similar income arises in the UK.

4. INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR CHARGES
On shares held by individuals and other shares
On deposits and other borrowings
Net interest income on derivative financial instruments

5. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Rental income

6. NET GAIN/(LOSS) FROM DERIVATIVES AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial instruments not in a hedge relationship
– Derivatives attributable to loans and advances
– Derivatives attributable to savings
– Debt securities held at fair value through profit or loss

Net gains/(losses) from derivative financial instruments
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13,805

GOVERNANCE

Profit on sale of debt securities

2016
£’000

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

On loans fully secured on residential property and other loans
On debt securities

2017
£’000

OTHER INFORMATION

3. INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND SIMILAR INCOME

Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
7. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
2017
£’000

2016
£’000

3,414

3,178

Employee costs
– Wages and salaries
– Capitalised employee time

(73)

(70)

3,341

3,108

– Social security costs

316

299

– Other pension costs

470

323

Other administrative expenses

4,127

3,730

2,581

2,577

6,708

6,307

67

88

Other administrative expenses include:
Auditor’s remuneration (excluding VAT)
– Audit fees for the Society

7

10

74

98

– Land and buildings

78

77

Profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets

43

23

– All other services
Operating lease charges

The 2016 audit fees for the Society included £27,000 of costs relating to the Society’s transition to FRS 102.
In addition to the above auditor’s remuneration KPMG, in respect of services supplied to the Society’s pension scheme, received £86,000 during the
year (2016 £162,000).
The audit fees in 2017 relate entirely to KPMG. In 2016 the fees relate entirely to PwC. During 2017 an additional fee of £15,000 from PwC was
charged in relation to the 2016 statutory audit and this amount has been included in administrative expenses.

8. EMPLOYEES
The average number of persons employed (including executive directors) during the financial year was:

2017

2016

Full time
Principal office

70

66

Branch offices

23

22

93

88

Principal office

24

21

Branch offices

9

11

33

32

Part time
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Aggregate emoluments

Fees
2016
£’000

Colin Franklin (appointed Chairman from 1st March 2016)

48

42

David Woodward (appointed Senior Independent Director from 22nd March 2017)

33

30

Andrew Astin (retired 22nd March 2017)

10

30

Geneane Bell

26

26

–

14

20

–

Nigel Frostick (Chairman to 29th February 2016, retired 23rd March 2016)
Barbara Mellish (appointed 22nd March 2017)
Paul Parmenter (Senior Independent Director to 22nd March 2017, retired 22nd March 2017)

11

34

Gary Wilkinson

30

30

Nemone Wynn-Evans (appointed 22nd March 2017)

20

–

198

206

Total
£’000

No pension contributions were made in respect of these directors.
(b) To executive directors for services in connection with the management of the Society

Salary
£’000

Bonus
£’000

Contribution
to defined
contribution
pension
scheme
£’000

Christopher White

210

8

–

218

Andrew Payton

147

6

13

166

2017

Dean Waddingham (appointed 17th May 2017)

2016
Christopher White
Andrew Payton

65

3

7

75

422

17

20

459

Salary
£’000

Bonus
£’000

Contribution
to defined
contribution
pension
scheme
£’000

Total
£’000

206

7

–

213

144

5

13

162

350

12

13

375

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

657

581

Total directors’ emoluments including benefits and pension contributions

(c) Directors’ loans and transactions
At 30th November 2017, there were outstanding mortgage loans to 4 (2016 5) directors and connected persons that had been granted in the
ordinary course of business, amounting in aggregate to £180,519 (2016 £575,117).
All directors of Building Societies are required to maintain a savings balance of at least £1,000 each in that Society. At 30th November 2017 the aggregate
balances held by directors and connected persons in Hinckley & Rugby savings accounts was £317,000 (2016: £812,000).
In accordance with Section 68 of the Building Societies Act 1986, the Society maintains a register in respect of loans, transactions and arrangements,
if any, between the Society and its directors, and persons connected with them.
Requisite particulars will be available for inspection by members, at the Society’s Principal Office in Hinckley for 15 days before the day of the Annual
General Meeting and also at that meeting.
Directors’ loans and transactions represent all the related party transactions that are required to be disclosed in these accounts.
(d) Key management compensation
Key management includes the executive directors, in accordance with relevant EBA regulatory technical standards, with the total emoluments
including benefits and pension contributions shown above.
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Fees
2017
£’000

GOVERNANCE

(a) To the Chairman and independent directors for services as directors

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Emoluments of the Society’s directors and key management are detailed below:

OTHER INFORMATION

9. DIRECTORS’ AND KEY MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS

Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
10. TAX ON PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
a) Tax expenses included in the Income and Expenditure Account
2017
£’000

2016
£’000

UK corporation tax on profits for the financial year

11

52

Adjustment in respect of previous periods

(2)

–

9

52

233

37

1

12

Current tax:

Total current tax
Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of timing differences
Effect of changes in tax rates

48

–

Total deferred tax

282

49

Total tax included in the Income and Expenditure Account

291

101

(3)
(126)
(129)

(58)
114
56

Prior year adjustment

b) Tax expense included in other comprehensive income
Current tax
Deferred tax
Total tax included in other comprehensive income

c) Reconciliation of tax charge
Tax assessed for the financial years ended 30th November 2017 and 30th November 2016 is higher than the standard rate of corporation tax in
the UK.
The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the income and expenditure account as follows:
Profit for the period - continuing operations
Tax on profit at standard UK tax rate of 19.33% (2016 20.00%)
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible
Disposal of non-qualifying property
Change in tax rate
Indexation on investment properties
Prior year adjustment
Total tax charge for the financial year

1,300
251

341
68

3
(8)
1
(3)
47
291

41
(16)
12
(4)
–
101

The prior year adjustment of £47k relates to sundry changes in the tax charge when finalising the tax computation for submission to the UK
tax authorities.
d) Tax rate changes
In the Budget on 8th July 2015, the UK Government proposed, amongst other things, to reduce the main rate of UK corporation tax to 19% with
effect from 1st April 2017. A further reduction to 17% with effect from 1st April 2020 was announced in March 2016. The rate reduction to 17% was
substantively enacted in September 2016 and existing temporary differences may therefore unwind in periods subject to these reduced rates.
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Cash in hand
Balances at Bank of England

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

228
106,116
106,344

219
81,258
81,477

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

5,249
42
5,291

3,625
16
3,641

STRATEGIC REPORT

11. CASH IN HAND AND BALANCES WITH THE BANK OF ENGLAND

12. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

2017
Fair value
Available through profit
for Sale
and loss
£’000
£’000

Listed

–

5,048

2016

Total
£’000

Available
for Sale
£’000

Fair value
through profit
and loss
£’000

Total
£’000

5,048

–

5,115

5,115

The directors of the Society consider that the primary purpose of holding securities is prudential. The securities held as liquid assets are held with the
intention of use on a continuing basis in the Society’s activities.
At 30th November 2017 and 30th November 2016 all debt securities were transferable securities. The listed securities are UK Government
sterling gilts.

14. ALLOWANCE FOR IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON LOANS AND ADVANCES
Loans fully secured on residential property

At 1st December 2015
Provision for loan impairment
At 30th November 2016
At 1st December 2016
Provision for loan impairment
At 30th November 2017

Individual
provision
£’000

Collective
provision
£’000

Total
£’000

–
–

400
400

400
400

–
–

400
400

400
400

The provisions as at 30th November 2017 and 30th November 2016 have been deducted from loans fully secured on residential property in the
balance sheet.
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13. DEBT SECURITIES

OTHER INFORMATION

Repayable on demand
Accrued interest

GOVERNANCE

Loans and advances to credit institutions have remaining maturities as follows:

Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
15. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Contract notional
amount
£’000

Fair value
assets
£’000

Fair value
liabilities
£’000

At 30th November 2017
Unmatched derivatives – interest rate swaps
Derivatives designated as fair value hedges - interest rate swaps
Total recognised derivative assets/(liabilities)

73,000
266,000
339,000

4
961
965

(37)
(476)
(513)

Less non-current portion:
Unmatched derivatives – interest rate swaps
Derivatives designated as fair value hedges - interest rate swaps
Total recognised derivative assets/(liabilities)

16,000
160,000
176,000

–
907
907

(10)
(355)
(365)

Current portion:
Unmatched derivatives – interest rate swaps
Derivatives designated as fair value hedges - interest rate swaps
Total recognised derivative assets/(liabilities)

57,000
106,000
163,000

4
54
58

(27)
(121)
(148)

Contract notional
amount
£’000

Fair value
assets
£’000

As at 30th November 2016
Unmatched derivatives – interest rate swaps
Derivatives designated as fair value hedges - interest rate swaps
Total recognised derivative assets/(liabilities)

40,000
195,500
235,500

85
520
605

(138)
(1,134)
(1,272)

Less non-current portion:
Unmatched derivatives – interest rate swaps
Derivatives designated as fair value hedges - interest rate swaps
Total recognised derivative assets/(liabilities)

25,000
94,500
119,500

76
385
461

(107)
(808)
(915)

Current portion:
Unmatched derivatives – interest rate swaps
Derivatives designated as fair value hedges - interest rate swaps
Total recognised derivative assets/(liabilities)

15,000
101,000
116,000

9
135
144

(31)
(326)
(357)

Fair value
liabilities
£’000

Unmatched derivatives relates to interest rate swaps which have not been matched against loans and advances to customers and savings for hedge
accounting purposes as at the relevant balance sheet date.
The full fair value of a hedging derivative has been classified as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is more
than 12 months, and as a current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months.
At 30th November 2017, the fixed interest rates vary from 0.28% to 3.00% (2016: 0.28% to 3.00%), and the main floating rates vary from LIBOR to
LIBOR + 1.26%.
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2016
£’000

619,499
188
619,687
(104)
(638)
618,945
(400)
618,545

Loans fully secured on residential property
Loans fully secured on land
Total loans
Effective interest rate adjustment
Fair value adjustment for hedged risk
Provision for impairment losses

540,133
188
540,321
(218)
144
540,247
(400)
539,847

The remaining maturity of loans and advances to customers from the date of the Balance Sheet is as follows:
2017
£’000

2016
£’000

789
5,655
18,694
106,948
486,859
618,945
(400)
618,545

Repayable on demand
In not more than 3 months
In more than 3 months but not more than 1 year
In more than 1 year but not more than 5 years
In more than 5 years
Provision for impairment losses

1,128
5,925
18,486
105,557
409,151
540,247
(400)
539,847

This analysis may not reflect actual experience of repayments since many mortgage loans are repaid early.
The maturity analysis above is based on contractual maturity, not behavioural or expected maturity.
The Society has encumbered £215.3m (2016 £83.5m) of mortgage assets through the Bank of England’s Term Funding Scheme (TFS) and Indexed
Long Term Repo Facility (ILTR). Each of these facilities is accessed via the placement of eligible collateral in the form of approved mortgage portfolios.
TFS and ILTR transactions do not involve the transfer of risk on the collateral and hence fail the derecognition criteria under FRS 102. Therefore, for
accounting purposes, the underlying collateral is retained on the Balance Sheet.

17. INVESTMENTS
The Society has the following subsidiary undertaking, in which it directly holds all the issued shares.

Hinckley and Rugby Financial Services Limited

Share capital
issued
£

Percentage
owned directly
by Society
%

2

100

The company is registered at the same address as the Society (see inside front cover) and has been dormant since 1st December 2004. All shares
are £1 ordinary shares. No director had a beneficial interest in any shares or debentures of the subsidiary undertaking. The company is incorporated
in the UK. It is directly held by the Society. The registered number of the company is 03262800. The Society holds 100% of the ordinary shares in
the company.
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2017
£’000

GOVERNANCE

Fair value hedging adjustments have been made to certain fixed rate mortgages that are in effective fair value hedging relationships.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Loans and advances to customers are held at amortised cost (with the exception of loans in a hedged relationship where the carrying value is
adjusted for interest rate risk), with interest and associated costs being recognised in the interest receivable and similar income line of the Income and
Expenditure Account on an effective interest rate basis.

OTHER INFORMATION

16. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
18. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Computer
Software
£’000

Cost or valuation at 1st December 2016
Additions
Disposals
Cost or valuation at 30th November 2017
Amortisation at 1st December 2016
Charge for the financial year
Disposals
Amortisation at 30th November 2017
Net Book Amount 30th November 2017

1,068
305
(1)
1,372
492
172
(1)
663
709

Intangible fixed assets represent the Society’s banking systems software which was created by external development firms. Accounting software
and regulatory reporting software is also included. The software assets are carried at £709,000 for 2017 (2016 £576,000) and have a remaining
amortisation period of between 1 and 5 years (2016: between 1 and 5 years). There are no other individually material intangible assets.
Additions in the financial year ended 30th November 2017 include £73,000 (2016 £70,000) of internally generated assets.

19. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Office and
computer
equipment

Land and buildings

Investment
properties

Total

Long
Leasehold
£’000

Short
Leasehold
£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

1,313
–
–
(10)
1,303
218
14
(11)

407
–
–
–
407
43
7
–

49
–
–
–
49
49
–
–

3,069
36
–
(20)
3,085
2,827
101
(19)

1,207
74
–
(65)
1,216
818
104
(42)

6,045
110
–
(95)
6,060
3,955
226
(72)

208
–
–
(65)
143
–
–
–

6,253
110
–
(160)
6,203
3,955
226
(72)

221
1,082

50
357

49
–

2,909
176

880
336

4,109
1,951

–
143

4,109
2,094

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

1,002

1,013

Freehold
£’000

Cost or valuation at 1st December 2016
Additions
Revaluation
Disposals
Cost or valuation at 30th November 2017
Accumulated depreciation at 1st December 2016
Charge for the financial year
On disposals
Accumulated depreciation at
30th November 2017
Net Book Amount 30th November 2017

Fixtures,
fittings and Tangible fixed
vehicles
assets

Net book amount of land and buildings occupied by the Society for its own activities		

£’000

£’000

The net book amount of land which is not subject to depreciation included in the freehold land and buildings at 30 November 2017 is £430,000
(2016 £433,000).
No tangible fixed assets are held under finance leases at 30th November 2017 (2016 none).
No external valuation has been performed on land and buildings, which are used purely for the Societies own purposes. The directors estimate that
the fair value of the land and buildings materially equates to carrying value.
Investment properties were revalued in 2016 and are held at fair value. Based upon market conditions and the consistent rental income of these
properties the directors are of the opinion that the valuations are an accurate estimate of open market value.
If the investment properties had not been revalued, they would have been included at 30th November 2017 at a cost of £61,000 (2016: £79,000).
The Society’s investment property portfolio consisted of three properties across the East Midlands at 1st December 2016. During the year ended
30th November 2017, one of the properties was sold to a third party. The sale proceeds were £78,000, the net book value was £65,000, giving
a gain of £13,000. The remaining two properties are a mixture of retail sites and residential lettings above the Society’s town centre branches.
There are formal rental agreements in place to third parties on commercial terms.
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The directors have consulted with external advisors, all of whom have recognised and relevant professional qualifications and recent experience
of the location and class of the investment properties being valued, in determining the fair values of the investment properties. The directors are
satisfied that there is sufficient market activity to provide comparable prices for orderly transactions with similar properties when determining
the estimated fair value of the Society’s portfolio. External data for market conditions and investment yields has been taken into account and the
fair values disclosed represent an average of valuations determined using those bases. The assumptions underlying this estimation of fair value
include contractual rentals, expected future market rentals, void periods, maintenance requirements and appropriate discount rates. There are no
restrictions on the realisability of investment property or the remittance of income and proceeds on disposal. There are no contractual obligations
to purchase, construct or develop investment property or for repairs, maintenance or enhancements.

Other debtors
Cash collateral pledged against unfavourable derivatives

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

226
190
416

–
1,330
1,330

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

676
(48)
(233)
–
126
521

832
–
(49)
–
(107)
676

42
93
386
521

66
(4)
614
676

521
–
521

150
530
680

–
–
521

(4)
(4)
676

GOVERNANCE

20. OTHER ASSETS

Deferred tax assets:
At 1st December
Adjustment in respect of prior years
Deferred tax charge to income and expenditure account for the financial year
Deferred tax charge in equity for the financial year
Deferred tax charge in other comprehensive income for the financial year
At 30th November
Fixed asset timing differences
Short term timing differences – trading
Losses

Deferred tax assets
Recoverable within 12 months
Recoverable after 12 months
Deferred tax liabilities
Payable within 12 months

There are no unrecognised tax losses or unused tax credits.
The Society expects to recover its deferred tax asset in respect of losses over the next 12 months and timing differences over the life of the
underlying assets.
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21. DEFERRED TAX ASSET

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Offsetting disclosures are given in note 31.

Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
22. PREPAYMENTS AND ACCRUED INCOME
2017
£’000

2016
£’000

433
3
436

352
2
354

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

557,204
116
557,320
43
557,363

504,486
116
504,602
154
504,756

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

474,742
6,229
72,944
553,915
3,448
557,363

436,497
18,556
46,206
501,259
3,497
504,756

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

2,000
5,000
108,000
115,000
69
115,069

34,000
20,500
–
54,500
55
54,555

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

18,512
5,700
2,020
26,232
24
26,256

16,533
10,800
7,767
35,100
71
35,171

Prepayments
Accrued income

23. SHARES
Fair value hedging adjustments have been made to certain fixed rate shares that are in effective fair value hedging relationships.

Held by individuals
Other shares
Fair value adjustment for hedged risk

Other shares are those held by institutions such as corporate customers, clubs and small charities.
Shares are repayable from the Balance Sheet date in the ordinary course of business as follows:

Repayable on demand
In not more than 3 months
In more than 3 months but not more than 1 year
Accrued interest

24. AMOUNTS OWED TO CREDIT INSTITUTIONS
Amounts owed to credit institutions are repayable from the Balance Sheet date as follows:

In not more than 3 months
In more than 3 months but not more than 1 year
In more than 1 year but not more than 5 years
Accrued interest

25. AMOUNTS OWED TO OTHER CUSTOMERS
Amounts owed to other customers are repayable from the Balance Sheet date as follows:

Repayable on demand
In not more than 3 months
In more than 3 months but not more than 1 year
Accrued interest
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169
68
39
276

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

87
186
273

149
160
309

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

27. ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED INCOME
Financial Services Compensation Scheme levy (see note 30 (a))
Other

28. GENERAL RESERVE
General reserves at 1st December
Profit for the financial year
Other comprehensive income for the financial year
At 30th November

40,360
1,009
(631)
40,738

39,503
240
617
40,360

29. AVAILABLE FOR SALE RESERVE
2017
£’000

At 1st December
Net gain from changes in fair value
Realised gain
At 30th November

–
–
–
–

2016
£’000

281
–
(281)
–

30. GUARANTEES AND OTHER FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
(a) Financial Services Compensation Scheme
2017
£’000

Liability at 1st December
Amount paid during the financial year
Amount overprovided in the previous financial year
Management expenses levy charged during the financial year
At 30th November

149
(89)
(59)
86
87

2016
£’000

144
(139)
(5)
149
149

Based on its share of protected deposits, the Society, in common with all regulated UK deposit takers, pays levies to the Financial Services
Compensation Scheme (FSCS) to enable the FSCS to meet claims against it. In previous years the FSCS levy consisted of two parts – a management
expenses levy and a compensation levy. The management expenses levy covers the costs of running the scheme and the compensation levy covers
the amount of compensation the FSCS pays, net of any recoveries it makes using the rights that have been assigned to it. In 2008 claims were
triggered against the FSCS by the failures of Bradford & Bingley and three Icelandic owned banks, Kaupthing Singer and Friedlander, Heritable Bank
and Landsbanki hf. Since December 2008 there have been further claims triggered by the failures of London Scottish Bank and Dunfermline Building
Society. During the year the Society recognised charges of £86,000 (2016 £149,000) payable under the management expenses levy and £nil (2016
£nil) payable under the compensation levy. At the year end the Society has recognised a provision of £87,000 (2016 £149,000), being the anticipated
amount that will be paid under the management expenses levy during 2018. This amount is paid with reference to the Society’s protected deposits as
at 31 December 2016. No further amounts are currently due under the compensation levy.
(b) Capital commitments
There were capital commitments of £1,813,000 at the year end (2016 £8,000) in respect of tangible and intangible fixed assets, most of which relates
to the purchase of a new Head Office.
(c) Hinckley and Rugby Pension Scheme Limited
Hinckley and Rugby Pension Scheme Limited is a company limited by guarantee that acts as a corporate trustee for the Hinckley and Rugby Building
Society 1969 Staff Pension and Life Assurance Scheme. The Society’s maximum exposure under the terms of its guarantee to the company is £1.
Hinckley and Rugby Pension Scheme Limited is not a subsidiary of the Society.
Hinckley & Rugby Building Society
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123
98
24
245

GOVERNANCE

2016
£’000

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amounts falling due within 1 year
Other taxation and social security
Trade creditors
Other creditors

2017
£’000

OTHER INFORMATION

26. OTHER LIABILITIES

Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
A financial instrument is a contract which gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability of another entity. The Society is a retailer of
financial instruments in the form of mortgage and savings products and also uses wholesale financial instruments to invest liquid asset balances, raise
wholesale funding and manage the risks arising from its operations.
The Society has a formal structure for managing risk, including established risk limits, reporting lines, mandates and other control procedures.
This structure is reviewed regularly by the Society’s Assets and Liabilities Committee, which is charged with the responsibility for managing
and controlling Balance Sheet exposures. Oversight is maintained by the Board Risk Committee, which has responsibility for all the Society’s
risk exposures.
Instruments used for risk management purposes include derivative financial instruments (‘derivatives’), which are contracts or agreements whose
value is derived from one or more underlying price, rate or index inherent in the contract or agreement, such as interest rates. Derivatives are only
used by the Society in accordance with the Building Societies Act 1986 (as amended by the Building Societies Acts 1997 and 2005), to reduce the
risk of loss arising from changes in interest rates or other factors specified in the legislation. The Society does not trade in derivatives or use them for
speculative purposes.
TYPE OF DERIVATIVES
The principal derivatives used in balance sheet risk management are interest rate swaps which are used to hedge Society balance sheet exposures
arising from fixed rate mortgage lending and savings products. An interest rate swap is a contract to exchange one set of interest rate cash flows for
another. In the Society’s case they are used to swap fixed cash flows for floating. No exchange of principal takes place. Interest payments are based
on notional principal amounts agreed at inception of the swap. The duration of the interest rate swaps is generally between one and five years and
their maturity profiles reflect the nature of the exposures arising from the underlying business activities.
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Receive fixed interest rate swaps
Pay fixed interest rate swaps.

THE FOLLOWING TABLE SETS OUT A SUMMARY OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS
Financial Instrument

Terms and Conditions

Accounting Policy

Cash in hand and balances with the
Bank of England

Interest paid at Bank of England Base Rate

Loans and receivables at amortised cost

Loans and advances to credit institutions

Repayable on demand
Fixed or Libor linked interest rates

Accounted for at settlement date
Loans and receivables at amortised cost

Debt securities

Repayable on demand
Fixed or Libor linked interest rates

Accounted for at settlement date
Available for sale at fair value or Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss

Fixed term
Loans and advances to customer

Repayable within two to five years
Fixed or variable interest rate
Secured on residential property or land
Standard contractual term of up to 35 years

Shares

Fixed or variable interest rates
Variable term

Accounted for at settlement date
Loans and receivables at amortised cost using
the Effective Interest Method, other than
where adjustment is made as part of a fair value
hedging arrangement
Accounted for at settlement date
Amortised cost using the Effective Interest
Method, other than where adjustment is made
as part of a fair value hedging arrangement

Amounts owed to credit institutions

Fixed or Libor linked interest rates

Accounted for at settlement date
Amortised cost

Amounts owed to other customers

Fixed term
Fixed or Libor linked interest rates

Accounted for at settlement date
Amortised cost

Fixed or variable term
Fixed interest cash flows converted to
variable interest cash flows

Accounted for at settlement date
Fair value through profit and loss

Derivative financial instruments

Accounted for at trade date

Based on notional value of derivative
Financial assets and liabilities are measured on an ongoing basis either at fair value or amortised cost. Note 1 describes how the classes of financial
instruments are measured, and how income and expenses, including fair values and gains and losses, are recognised. The tables below analyse the
Society’s assets and liabilities by financial classification.
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Type of Hedge

Sensitivity to falls in interest rates
Sensitivity to increases in interest rates

GOVERNANCE

Risk

Fixed rate savings products
Fixed rate mortgage products

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Activity

OTHER INFORMATION

The following table describes the significant activities undertaken by the Society, the related risks associated with such activities and the types of
derivatives which are typically used in managing such risks. The Society applies fair value hedging techniques to these. The fair value of these hedges as
at 30th November 2017 is shown in note 15.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Carrying values as at 30th November 2017
Held at amortised cost

Financial assets
Cash in hand and balances with the Bank of
England
Loans and advances to credit institutions
Debt securities
Derivative financial instruments
Loans and advances to customers
Other assets
Total financial assets
Total non-financial assets
Total assets
Financial liabilities
Shares
Amounts owed to credit institutions
Amounts owed to other customers
Derivative financial instruments
Total financial liabilities
Total non-financial liabilities
General and other reserves
Total reserves and liabilities

Held at fair value

Loans and
receivables
£’000

Financial
assets and
liabilities at
amortised
cost
£’000

–
5,291
–
–
618,545
–
623,836

106,344
–
–
–
–
416
106,760

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
5,048
–
–
–
5,048

–
–
–
961
–
–
961

–
–
–
4
–
–
4

106,344
5,291
5,048
965
618,545
416
736,609
3,848
740,457

–
–
–
–
–

557,363
115,069
26,256
–
698,688

–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
476
476

–
–
–
37
37

557,363
115,069
26,256
513
699,201
518
40,738
740,457

Fair value
Available for through profit
sale
or loss
£’000
£’000

Derivatives
designated as
fair value
hedges
£’000

Unmatched
derivatives at
fair value
£’000

Total
£’000

The amounts owed to credit institutions includes £108m of borrowings from the Bank of England under the Term Funding Scheme.
Carrying values as at 30th November 2016
Held at amortised cost

Financial assets
Cash in hand and balances with the Bank of
England
Loans and advances to credit institutions
Debt securities
Derivative financial instruments
Loans and advances to customers
Other assets
Total financial assets
Total non-financial assets
Total assets
Financial liabilities
Shares
Amounts owed to credit institutions
Amounts owed to other customers
Derivative financial instruments
Total financial liabilities
Total non-financial liabilities
General and other reserves
Total reserves and liabilities
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Held at fair value

Loans and
receivables
£’000

Financial assets
and liabilities at
amortised cost
£’000

Fair value
Derivatives
through profit designated as fair
or loss
value hedges
£’000
£’000

Available
for sale
£’000

Unmatched
derivatives
at fair value
£’000

–
3,641
–
–
539,847
–
543,488

81,477
–
–
–
–
1,330
82,807

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
5,115
–
–
–
5,115

–
–
–
520
–
–
520

–
–
–
85
–
–
85

81,477
3,641
5,115
605
539,847
1,330
632,015
4,684
636,699

–
–
–
–
–

504,756
54,555
35,171
–
594,482

–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
1,134
1,134

–
–
–
138
138

504,756
54,555
35,171
1,272
595,754
585
40,360
636,699

Total
£’000

As at 30th November 2016
Financial assets
Debt securities
Available For Sale
Fair Value Through Profit and Loss
Derivative financial instruments
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments

Total
£’000

–
5,048
–
5,048

–
–
965
965

–
–
–
–

–
5,048
965
6,013

–

513

–

513

Level 1
£’000

Level 2
£’000

Level 3
£’000

Total
£’000

–
5,115
–
5,115

–
–
605
605

–
–
–
–

–
5,115
605
5,720

–

1,272

–

1,272

Valuation techniques
The following is a description of the determination of fair value for financial instruments which are accounted for at fair value using
valuation techniques.
Level 1 – Quoted Prices (unadjusted) based on independent third party valuations in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 – Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.
The main valuation techniques employed by the Society to determine fair value of the financial instruments disclosed above are set out below:
Debt securities & Derivative financial instruments
Level 1 – Market prices have been used to determine the fair value of the listed debt securities.
Level 2 – Interest rate swaps – the valuation of interest rate swaps is based on the net present value method.
The expected interest cash flows are discounted using the three month forecast Libor curves. The Libor curves are generally observable market
data which is derived from quoted interest rates in similar time bandings which match the timings of the interest cash flows and maturities of
the instruments.
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Level 3
£’000
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Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments

Level 2
£’000

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 30th November 2017
Financial assets
Debt securities
Available For Sale
Fair Value Through Profit and Loss
Derivative financial instruments

Level 1
£’000

OTHER INFORMATION

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CARRIED AT FAIR VALUE
The table below summarises the Society’s financial assets and liabilities that are accounted for at fair value, analysed by the valuation method used.

Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
RISK ANALYSIS
The Society identifies risk within financial instruments under the headings of credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and capital adequacy. Information on
each of these risk categories is provided below.
A – CREDIT RISK
The Society’s maximum credit risk exposure is detailed in the table below:

Cash in hand and balances with the Bank of England
Loans and advances to credit institutions
Debt securities
Derivative financial instruments
Loans and advances to customers
Other assets
Total statement of financial exposure (1)
Off balance sheet exposure - mortgage commitment (2)
Total

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

106,344
5,291
5,048
965
618,545
416
736,609
35,352
771,961

81,477
3,641
5,115
605
539,847
1,330
632,015
30,479
662,494

(1) All values are stated at balance sheet amounts.
(2) This reflects business that has been formally offered but has not yet completed.
a) Loans and advances to credit institutions, debt securities and derivative financial instruments
An analysis of the Society’s treasury asset concentration is shown in the table below:

Industry Sector
Banks
Central Government
Total

2017
£’000

2017
%

2016
£’000

2016
%

5,481
111,164
116,645

5%
95%
100%

4,971
86,373
91,344

5%
95%
100%

An analysis of the Society’s treasury assets and derivative financial instruments by credit rating of the counterparty is analysed in the table below:
As at 30th November 2017
Credit quality step

Treasury assets
Derivative financial instruments

As at 30th November 2016
Credit quality step

Treasury assets
Derivative financial instruments

Total
£’000

Step 1
AAA to AA%

Step 2
Step 3
A+ to A- BBB+ to BBB%
%

Step 4
BB+ to BB%

116,645
965

100%
45%

–
55%

–
–

–
–

Total
£’000

Step 1
AAA to AA%

Step 2
A+ to A%

Step 3
BBB+ to BBB%

Step 4
BB+ to BB%

91,344
605

99%
46%

–
–

–
54%

1%
–

All of the Society’s treasury assets and derivative financial instruments are held with counterparties located in the United Kingdom.
There are no impairment charges against any of the Society’s treasury assets at 30th November 2017 or 30th November 2016.
There is no collateral held against the Society’s treasury assets at 30th November 2017 or 30th November 2016.
b) Loans and advances to customers
All mortgage loan applications are assessed with reference to the Society’s retail credit risk appetite statement and lending policy, which includes
assessing applicants for potential fraud risk, and which is approved by the Board. When deciding on the overall risk appetite that the Society wishes
to adopt, both numerical and non-numerical considerations are taken into account, along with data on the current UK economic climate, portfolio
information derived from the Society’s own internal data and competitor activity. The statement must comply with all the prevailing regulatory policy
and framework. The lending portfolio is monitored by the Board Risk Committee (BRC) to ensure that it remains in line with the stated risk appetite
of the Society, including adherence to the lending principles, policies and lending limits.
The Society adopts a prudent lending approach to mortgage customers which will ensure that default rates are low. For new customers, the Society
relies upon adherence to its Lending Policy to determine the credit quality of potential customers. Prior to making loan offers, all applications are
stress tested using the Society’s affordability model. This approach, combined with the use of credit checks is used to confirm the credit quality of
all new applicants. For existing customers who subsequently apply for additional lending, the same process is adopted. All mortgage applications are
overseen by the Mortgage Underwriting team who ensure that all information submitted within the application is validated and loans are approved in
line with appropriate mandate levels.
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Geographic region
South East
East Midlands
West Midlands
South West
North West
Yorkshire and Humberside
Outer Metropolitan
East Anglia
Wales
London
North
Total

2017
£’000

2017
%

2016
£’000

2016
%

127,173
71,429
80,085
59,505
58,992
59,828
64,190
30,705
24,784
24,208
18,046
618,945

20.5%
11.5%
12.9%
9.6%
9.5%
9.7%
10.4%
5.0%
4.0%
3.9%
2.9%
100.0%

113,224
70,120
65,714
52,551
52,123
51,463
46,993
28,220
22,827
20,405
16,607
540,247

21.0%
13.0%
12.2%
9.7%
9.6%
9.5%
8.7%
5.2%
4.2%
3.8%
3.1%
100.0%

The average loan to value (LTV) is the mean LTV for the portfolio. Each individual LTV is calculated by comparing the value of the mortgage loan to
the value of collateral held adjusted by a house price index.
The average LTV of residential mortgages is 34.5% (2016 30.9%). All residential loans above 80% LTV are insured, such that once a deductible
amount is reached the Society would be reimbursed in the event of taking possession of the property by an amount that would restore the Society
to the position it would have been in had the advance been limited to 80%.
Further LTV information on the Society’s residential mortgage portfolio is shown below:

LTV analysis – residential loans
0% to less than 50%
50% to less than 60%
60% to less than 70%
70% to less than 80%
80% to less than 90%
90% to 95%
Average loan to value of residential mortgage loans
Average loan to value of new business in the year

2017
%

2016
%

32.5%
9.5%
9.8%
15.3%
25.9%
7.0%
34.5%
76.5%

38.8%
8.8%
12.3%
12.4%
23.6%
4.1%
30.9%
77.9%
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The Society operates through England and Wales with the portfolio well spread throughout the geographic regions. An analysis of the Society’s
geographical concentration, gross of provisions, is shown in the table below:

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Society does not have any exposure to the sub-prime market. The maximum credit risk exposure is disclosed in the table on page 52. Loans and
advances to customers are almost exclusively made up of retail loans fully secured against UK property, split between residential and buy to let loans.
In addition, the Society has one long-standing loan secured on commercial property, which has performed in accordance with its agreed contractual
terms throughout the financial year. The Society has not offered new loans secured on commercial property for a number of years and has no
intention of resuming such lending.

OTHER INFORMATION

For existing customers who already have mortgages with the Society, ongoing creditworthiness of customers is determined through close monitoring
of mortgage accounts, based upon their ability to meet their mortgage obligations. In addition, monitoring takes place to ensure the Society adheres
to a range of operational lending limits, designed to meet the Society’s risk appetite as set by the Board. Credit risk management information is
comprehensive and is circulated to the Board on a monthly basis to ensure that the portfolio remains within the Society’s risk appetite. It is the
Society’s policy to ensure good customer outcomes and to lend responsibly by ensuring at the outset that the customer can meet the mortgage
repayments. This is achieved by obtaining specific information from the customer concerning income and expenditure.

Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
LTV analysis – buy to let loans

Buy to Let
0% to less than 50%
50% to less than 60%
60% to less than 70%
70% to less than 80%
Average loan to value of buy to let mortgage loans
Average loan to value of new business in the year

2017
%

2016
%

16.0%
31.2%
30.6%
22.2%
55.1%
62.3%

19.1%
22.6%
32.8%
25.5%
53.4%
70.7%

The quality of the Society’s retail mortgage book is reflected in the number and value of accounts in arrears.
At 30th November 2017 there were 11 accounts in arrears of one month or more (2016 12), representing 0.20% of accounts by number
(2016 0.22%).
ARREARS ANALYSIS
The following table analyses the Society’s loans and advances to customers by length of time in arrears and whether or not the balances are impaired,
where impairment is defined as being more than three months in arrears.

Not impaired
Neither past due or impaired
Past due up to three months but not impaired
Impaired
Past due three to twelve months
Total

2017
£’000

2017
%

2016
£’000

2016
%

617,855
969

99.8%
0.2%

539,412
769

99.9%
0.1%

121
618,945

0.0%
100%

66
540,247

0.0%
100%

2017
£’000

2017
%

2016
£’000

2016
%

1,648,237
3,715

99.8%
0.2%

1,615,171
3,053

99.8%
0.2%

455
1,652,407

0.0%
100%

640
1,618,864

0.0%
100.%

VALUE OF COLLATERAL HELD

Not impaired
Neither past due or impaired
Past due up to three months but not impaired
Impaired
Past due three to twelve months
Total

The arrears of less than one month have been re-presented in the prior year comparatives with the impact being a 0.1% reduction in the Neither
past due or impaired category and a corresponding increase of 0.1% in the Past due up to three months but not impaired category.
The collateral consists of residential property, with the exception of one (2016 one) commercial property with a value of £640,000 (2016 £609,000)
which provides collateral for one (2016 one) longstanding commercial loan. Collateral values are adjusted according to the Nationwide Building
Society house price index to derive the indexed valuation at 30th November. This is a long running house price index and takes into account regional
data from the 12 standard planning regions of the UK. The Society uses the index to update the property values of its residential and buy-to-let
portfolios on a quarterly basis.
The status ‘past due up to three months but not impaired’ includes any account where a payment due is received late or missed but no individual
provision has been allocated. The amount included is the entire loan amount rather than just the overdue amount. Accounts past due over three
month and impaired includes accounts where an individual provision has been considered where appropriate.
The split of the loan book between buy to let and residential and interest only and repayment is shown below:

Repayment – residential mortgage
Interest only – residential mortgage
Repayment – buy to let
Interest only – buy to let
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2017
%

2016
%

70%
9%
1%
20%

71%
11%
1%
17%

Capitalisations of arrears occur where arrears are added to the capital balance outstanding for the purposes of re-structuring the loan.
The term of the mortgage may be extended in order to reduce payments to a level which is affordable to the customer based on their current
financial circumstances.
Payment holidays are arrangements whereby the customer makes no payment for an agreed period, typically three to six months. Once the payment
holiday comes to an end the monthly repayment is recalculated to ensure the mortgage is repaid by its original maturity date. Customers on certain
mortgage schemes have a contractual entitlement to take a payment holiday each year, but the Society still monitors those payment holidays that
have been requested for reasons of financial difficulty.
All forbearance arrangements are formally discussed and agreed with the customer. By offering customers in financial difficulty the option of
forbearance the Society potentially exposes itself to an increased level of risk through prolonging the period of non-contractual payment and/or
potentially placing the customer into a detrimental position at the end of the forbearance period.
All forbearance arrangements are reviewed and monitored on a monthly basis to assess the ongoing potential risk, suitability and sustainability to the
Society. The level and different types of forbearance activity are reported to the Board on a monthly basis.
Where forbearance measures are not possible or are considered not to be in the customer’s best interests, or where such measures have been
tried and the customer has not adhered to the forbearance terms that have been agreed, the Society will consider realising its security and taking
possession of the property in order to sell it and clear the outstanding debt.
The table below details the number of forbearance cases within the “Not impaired” category.

Type of forbearance
Reduced payment including interest only concessions
Arrangements
Payment holidays
Total

2017
Number

2016
Number

2
3
–
5

–
3
1
4

In total £532,000 (2016 £221,000) of loans are subject to forbearance. There are no individual impairment provisions against these loans (2016 £nil).
B – LIQUIDITY RISK
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Society is unable to meet its financial obligations as they become due, resulting in an inability to support normal
business activity or a failure to meet liquidity regulatory requirements.
Stress tests are undertaken to measure the Society’s ability to meet adverse cash flows on a regular basis. This activity is overseen by the Assets and
Liabilities Committee. The Society also complies with the rules issued by the Prudential Regulatory Authority concerning the quality of liquid assets
held by banks and building societies. As a consequence, the Society held £106.1m at 30 November 2017 (2016: £81.3m) on deposit with the Bank of
England to ensure ready access to liquid funds should the need arise.
The table below analyses the Society’s assets and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings, based on the remaining period to contractual maturity on
an undiscounted basis at the balance sheet date. This is not representative of the Society’s management of liquidity. Loans and advances to customers
rarely run their full course. The actual repayment profile is likely to be significantly different from that shown in the analysis. For example, most
mortgages have a contractual maturity of around 25 years but are generally repaid much sooner. Conversely, retail deposits repayable on demand
generally remain on balance sheet much longer.
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Arrangement payment plans are agreed to enable customers to reduce their arrears balances by an agreed amount per month which is paid in
addition to their standard monthly repayment.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Interest only concessions are offered to customers in financial difficulty on a temporary basis with formal periodic review. The concession allows the
customer to reduce monthly payments to cover interest only, and if made, the arrears status will not increase.

OTHER INFORMATION

FORBEARANCE
The Society may, depending on individual circumstances, offer customers one of a number of forbearance options if the customer is facing financial
difficulty. The types of forbearance the Society may be prepared to offer include the following.

Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
BALANCE SHEET RESIDUAL MATURITY ANALYSIS

30th November 2017

Assets
Liquid assets
 Cash in hand and balances with the
Bank of England
 Loans and advances to credit institutions
 Debt securities
Total liquid assets
Derivative financial instruments
Loans and advances to customers
Tangible and intangible fixed assets
Other assets
Other non-financial assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Shares
Amounts owed to credit institutions
Amounts owed to other customers
Derivative financial instruments
Other liabilities
Reserves
Total liabilities and reserves
Net liquidity gap

30th November 2016

Assets
Liquid assets
 Cash in hand and balances with the
Bank of England
 Loans and advances to credit institutions
 Debt securities
Total liquid assets
Derivative financial instruments
Loans and advances to customers
Tangible and intangible fixed assets
Other assets
Other non-financial assets
Total assets
Financial liabilities
Shares
Amounts owed to credit institutions
Amounts owed to other customers
Derivative financial instruments
Other liabilities
Reserves
Total liabilities and reserves
Net liquidity gap
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More than
More than
3 months but
one year but
less than one not more than
year
five years
£’000
£’000

On demand
£’000

Not
more than
3 months
£’000

106,344
5,291
–
111,635
–
789
–
–
–
112,424

–
–
–
–
–
5,655
–
–
–
5,655

–
–
5,048
5,048
–
18,694
–
–
–
23,742

–
–
–
–
–
106,948
–
190
–
107,138

–
–
–
–
–
486,859
–
–
–
486,859

–
–
–
–
965
(400)
2,803
226
1,045
4,639

106,344
5,291
5,048
116,683
965
618,545
2,803
416
1,045
740,457

478,190
–
18,536
–
–
–
496,726
(384,302)

6,229
2,069
5,700
–
–
–
13,998
(8,343)

72,944
5,000
2,020
–
–
–
79,964
(56,222)

–
108,000
–
–
–
–
108,000
(862)

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
486,859

–
–
–
513
518
40,738
41,769
(37,130)

557,363
115,069
26,256
513
518
40,738
740,457
–

More than
one year but
not more than
five years
£’000

More than
five years
£’000

Non cash
£’000

On demand
£’000

Not
More than
more than 3 months but less
3 months
than one year
£’000
£’000

More than
five years
£’000

Non cash
£’000

Total
£’000

Total
£’000

81,477
3,641
–
85,118
–
1,128
–
–
–
86,246

–
–
–
–
–
5,925
–
–
–
5,925

–
–
–
–
–
18,486
–
–
–
18,486

–
–
5,115
5,115
–
105,557
–
1,330
–
112,002

–
–
–
–
–
409,151
–
–
–
409,151

–
–
–
–
605
(400)
2,874
–
1,810
4,889

81,477
3,641
5,115
90,233
605
539,847
2,874
1,330
1,810
636,699

439,994
–
16,604
–
–
–
456,598
(370,352)

18,556
34,055
10,800
–
–
–
63,411
(57,486)

46,206
20,500
7,767
–
–
–
74,473
(55,987)

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
112,002

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
409,151

–
–
–
1,272
585
40,360
42,217
(37,328)

504,756
54,555
35,171
1,272
585
40,360
636,699
–

30th November 2016

Shares
Amounts owed to credit institutions
Amounts owed to other customers
Non-derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments
Total financial liabilities

121,411
2,006
13,776
137,193
363
137,556

106,562
5,016
2,027
113,605
1,124
114,729

On demand
£’000

Not
More than
more than 3 months but less
3 months
than one year
£’000
£’000

270,054
–
8,859
278,913
–
278,913

95,625
34,060
19,522
149,207
113
149,320

112,258
20,029
7,353
139,640
859
140,499

Total
£’000

54,939
108,364
–
163,303
3,269
166,572

–
–
–
–
27
27

560,260
115,386
26,266
701,912
4,783
706,695

More than
one year but
not more than
five years
£’000

More than
five years
£’000

Total
£’000

28,876
–
–
28,876
1,795
30,671

–
–
–
–
9
9

506,813
54,089
35,734
596,636
2,776
599,412

The analysis of gross contractual cash flows differs from the analysis of residual maturity, due to the inclusion of interest accrued at current rates for
the average period of maturity on the amounts outstanding at the balance sheet date. The contractual cashflows do not make allowance for any
accounts that have been placed on notice of withdrawal by the customer. The impact of such notice is not material to the analysis.
C – MARKET RISK
Market risk is the risk of changes to the Society’s financial condition caused by market interest rates. The Society is exposed to market risk in the form
of changes (or potential changes) in the general level of interest rates (interest rate risk), changes in the relationship between short and long-term
interest rates and divergence of interest rates for different balance sheet elements (basis risk).
The Society hedges interest rate risk by hedging its exposures to fixed rate mortgage lending and fixed rate savings. Overall interest rate risk is
managed through a balance sheet gap analysis. Limits are placed on the net exposures (after allowing for on-balance sheet hedges) within each time
period and the exposures are managed by the use of interest rate swaps. The balance sheet gap analysis is subjected to a stress test of a 2% change
in interest rates on a monthly basis and the results are measured against the risk appetite for market risk which is currently set at a maximum of
1.25% of capital. In addition basis risk is controlled by a Board approved risk appetite. Both are reported in the monthly ALCO information and to
the Board.
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GOVERNANCE

277,348
–
10,463
287,811
–
287,811

More than
five years
£’000
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Shares
Amounts owed to credit institutions
Amounts owed to other customers
Non-derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments
Total financial liabilities

On demand
£’000

OTHER INFORMATION

30th November 2017

More than
More than
3 months but
one year but
less than one not more than
year
five years
£’000
£’000

Not
more than
3 months
£’000

STRATEGIC REPORT

ANALYSIS OF GROSS CONTRACTUAL CASH FLOWS PAYABLE UNDER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
The table below summarises the Society’s exposure to interest rate risk. Included in the table are Society assets and liabilities, including derivative
financial instruments which are principally used to reduce exposure to interest rate risk, categorised by re-pricing date.
The interest rate sensitivity gap of the Society at 30th November 2017 by reference to the next interest reset date is shown below:
Not more
than three
months
£’000

Cash in hand and balances with the Bank of
England
Loans and advances to credit institutions
Debt securities
Total liquid assets
Derivative financial instruments
Loans and advances to customers
Tangible and intangible fixed assets
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Shares
Amounts owed to credit institutions and
other customers
Derivative financial instruments
Other liabilities
Reserves
Total liabilities
Off balance sheet items
Net interest rate gap

More than More than six
three months
months but
More than
but not more
not
one year but
than six
more than not more than
months
one year
five years
£’000
£’000
£’000

More than
five years
£’000

Non
interestbearing
£’000

Total
£’000

106,344
5,249
–
111,593
–
363,191
–
190
474,974

–
–
–
–
–
15,385
–
–
15,385

–
–
5,026
5,026
–
37,446
–
–
42,472

–
–
–
–
–
202,445
–
–
202,445

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
42
22
64
965
78
2,803
1,271
5,181

106,344
5,291
5,048
116,683
965
618,545
2,803
1,461
740,457

457,343

11,399

32,219

52,954

–

3,448

557,363

139,219
–
–
–
596,562
83,965
(37,623)

–
–
–
–
11,399
25,000
28,986

270
–
–
–
32,489
35,000
44,983

–
–
–
–
52,954
(144,787)
4,704

–
–
–
–
–
822
822

1,836
513
518
40,738
47,053
–
(41,872)

141,325
513
518
40,738
740,457
–
–

The interest rate sensitivity gap of the Society at 30th November 2016 was:

Cash in hand and balances with the
Bank of England
Loans and advances to credit institutions
Debt securities
Total liquid assets
Derivative financial instruments
Loans and advances to customers
Tangible and intangible fixed assets
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Shares
Amounts owed to credit institutions and
other customers
Derivative financial instruments
Other liabilities
Reserves
Total liabilities
Off balance sheet items
Net interest rate gap
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Not more than
three months
£’000

More than
three months
but not more
than six months
£’000

More than six
months but not
more than
one year
£’000

More than
one year but
not more than
five years
£’000

More than
five years
£’000

81,477
3,625
–
85,102
–
374,548
–
1,330
460,980

–
–
–
–
–
10,948
–
–
10,948

–
–
–
–
–
25,620
–
–
25,620

–
–
5,093
5,093
–
129,245
–
–
134,338

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
16
22
38
605
(514)
2,874
1,810
4,813

81,477
3,641
5,115
90,233
605
539,847
2,874
3,140
636,699

408,565

13,989

47,244

31,461

–

3,497

504,756

82,333
–
–

–
–
–

7,267
–
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

490,898
47,500
17,582

13,989
16,000
12,959.00

54,511
25,000
(3,891)

31,461
(92,760)
10,117

–
4,260
4,260

126
1,272
585
40,360
45,840
–
(41,027)

89,726
1,272
585
40,360
636,699
–
–

Non
interest-bearing
£’000

Total
£’000

21
617
638

54
913
967

116,000
119,500
235,500

Replacement
Cost 2016
£’000

18
490
508

35
474
509

MARKET RISK SENSITIVITIES
The Society uses derivative financial instruments and exposure limits to mitigate the effect of adverse interest rate movements on net interest
income. At 30th November 2017 the adverse impact of a 2% parallel shift in interest rates (measured using calculated interest rate gap positions) was
£275,000 across the gap report horizon (2016 £244,000). The Society also models the impact of basis risk and at 30th November 2017, the adverse
impact of a reduction to nil in 3 month LIBOR relative to Base Rate was £340,000 per annum. A similar analysis carried out in November 2016 using
a 0.40% reduction in LIBOR relative to base rate resulted in a £170,000 per annum adverse impact.
OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The Society has financial assets and liabilities for which there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and which may be settled
net. However the netting arrangements do not result in an offset of balance sheet assets and liabilities for accounting purposes as the right to set off is
not unconditional in all circumstances. The amounts relate to derivative financial instruments and associated financial collateral which consists of cash
that is settled, typically daily or weekly, to mitigate mark to market exposures. The agreements under which the collateral is settled typically allow
either counterparty to offset the relevant amounts if the other counterparty defaults on the terms of the derivative contract.
The amounts for which offsetting arrangements were in place are as follows:

Fair value of derivative financial instrument liabilities
Associated collateral
Net amount after offsetting

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

(513)
190
(323)

(1,272)
1,330
58

D – CAPITAL ADEQUACY
Capital provides protection for shareholders and other creditors of the Society as it is a source of own funds that can be drawn down in the event
of the Society being unable to realise the value of outstanding loans or facing other financial difficulties. The Society’s policy is to maintain a strong
capital base to sustain member, creditor and market confidence and to support future development of the business. The formal annual Internal
Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) assists the Society with its capital management. Through its regular updates the Board monitors the
Society’s capital position to assess whether adequate capital is held to mitigate the risks it faces in the course of its business activities. The Society’s
actual and expected capital positions are reviewed against a stated risk appetite which aims to maintain capital at a minimum level above the Internal
Capital Guidance (ICG) provided by the PRA.
The Board’s monitoring of the Society’s capital and risk exposures includes consideration of the following issues:
a) Lending decisions – The Society’s lending policy and the lending actually undertaken are closely monitored by management and the Board Risk
Committee to ensure they align to the Society’s risk appetite.
b) Pricing – A pricing model is used for all mortgage products. The model assesses the expected return for each mortgage product against all
relevant sources of funding to ensure an adequate financial return and maintenance of the Society’s capital position.
c) Concentration risk – The design of both retail and mortgage products takes into account the overall mix of products to ensure that concentration
levels are maintained within the Society’s risk appetite.
d) C
 ounterparty risk – Deposits are only placed with approved counterparties in line with the Society’s treasury risk policy and are subject to a range
of limits. The limits are monitored daily to ensure the Society remains within risk appetite.
There were no breaches of capital requirements during the year. There have been no material changes in the Society’s management of its capital
during the year.
Under Basel III Pillar 3 the Society is required to publish further information regarding its capital position and exposures. The resulting Risk Profile
Disclosure document is available on the Society’s website.

Hinckley & Rugby Building Society
Annual Report and Accounts 2017

59

GOVERNANCE

163,000
176,000
339,000

Nominal
Credit risk
Replacement principal amount weighted amount
Cost 2017
2016
2016
£’000
£’000
£’000
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Credit risk
weighted
amount 2017
£’000

OTHER INFORMATION

Interest rate contracts maturing:
In less than 1 year
Between 1 year and 5 years
Total

Nominal
principal
amount 2017
£’000

STRATEGIC REPORT

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
SUMMARY CAPITAL POSITION
2017
£’000

Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1)
General reserve
Intangible assets
Post employment benefit surplus, net of deferred tax
Tier 2 capital
Collective provision
Total regulatory capital
Risk Weighted Assets (unaudited)
Capital ratios
CET 1 ratio
Total capital ratio
Leverage ratio

2016
£’000

40,738
(709)
73
40,102

40,360
(576)
(656)
39,128

400

400

40,502

39,528

257,150

223,147

15.6%
15.8%
5.5%

17.5%
17.7%
6.3%

32. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
DISCLOSURES FOR THE HINCKLEY & RUGBY BUILDING SOCIETY 1969 STAFF PENSION AND LIFE ASSURANCE SCHEME
The Society operates a pension scheme providing benefits based on final pensionable salary for service to 31st May 2008. Benefits earned after this
date, until the closure of the scheme to future accrual on 1st January 2010 were based on career average earnings. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Society.
The plan is a final salary pension arrangement where members receive benefits based on their final salary.
The plan also provides benefits to spouses/dependants in the event of a member’s death before or after retirement.
The Society does not expect to pay any deficit reduction contributions to the plan during the next accounting period.
Scheme expenses will be paid by the plan and subsequently reimbursed by the company upon request of the Trustee.
The valuation used has been based on the most recent full actuarial valuation at 30th November 2015 and updated to 30th November 2017 by a
qualified independent actuary to take account of the requirements of Section 28 of FRS 102 in order to assess the liabilities of the scheme at 30th
November 2017 using the projected unit credit method.
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are:

Present value of funded obligations
Fair value of plan assets
Total surplus recognised

2017
£’000

(28,000)
28,088
88

The scheme rules confirm that the Society has the right to a surplus on winding up the scheme at the end of its life. As a result, the surplus at
30th November 2017 and 30th November 2016 has been recognised on the balance sheet.
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2016
£’000

(27,150)
27,930
780

796
(773)
23

903
(874)
29

Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income:

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

308
(1,068)
–
(760)

Actuarial gains on the assets
Actuarial losses on the liabilities
Change in limit on recoverable surplus
Total gain recognised in other comprehensive income

2017
£’000

Reconciliation of change in defined benefit obligation:

Opening defined benefit obligation at 1st December
Interest cost
Actuarial losses on obligation
Benefits paid
Closing defined benefit obligation at 30th November

27,150
773
1,068
(991)
28,000

2017
£’000

Reconciliation of change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at 1st December
Expected return on plan assets
Actuarial gains on assets
Contributions paid by the employer
Benefits paid
Fair value of plan assets at 30th November

27,930
796
308
45
(991)
28,088

The major categories of plan assets, measured at fair value are:

Diversified Growth Fund
Gilts, bonds and Liability Driven Investments (LDI) strategy assets
Cash
Total fair value of plan assets at 30th November

Return on plan assets:

Interest income
Return on plan assets less interest income
Total return on plan assets

2,932
(3,023)
764
673

2016
£’000

24,009
874
3,023
(756)
27,150

2016
£’000

24,773
903
2,932
78
(756)
27,930

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

7,107
20,926
55
28,088

6,870
20,929
131
27,930

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

796
308
1,104

903
2,932
3,835

The plan assets do not include any of the Society’s financial instruments, nor is any property occupied by the Society.
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Expected return on plan assets
Interest cost
Total amount recognised in income and expenditure

GOVERNANCE

2016
£’000

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2017
£’000

OTHER INFORMATION

Amounts recognised in income and expenditure are:

Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Principal actuarial assumptions as at the end of the accounting period:

Discount rate
Rate of future inflation - RPI (% pa)
Rate of future inflation - CPI (% pa)
Rate of increase (% pa) in future pensions in payment, split:
Inflation linked, with a minimum of 3% pa and a max of 5% pa
Inflation linked up to 2.5% pa
The mortality assumptions used were as follows:
Members not yet retired
- Life expectancy at 62 of a male member (non-pensioner) currently aged 45:
- Life expectancy at 62 of a female member (non-pensioner) currently aged 45:
Current pensioners
- Life expectancy of a male member (pensioner) currently aged 62:
- Life expectancy of a female member (pensioner) currently aged 62:
Allowance for early retirements
Allowance for members to commute pension for tax-free cash

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

2.75%
3.25%
2.25%

2.90%
3.30%
2.30%

3.70%
2.05%

3.75%
2.10%

26.8
29.1

26.7
29.0

25.7
27.8
Nil
Nil

25.6
27.7
Nil
Nil

From 1st January 2010 employees have had the opportunity to participate in a stakeholder scheme to which the Society contributes a defined
percentage of salary. The pension cost charge for the year was £364,000 (2016 £323,000) and there were no outstanding or prepaid contributions
at 30th November 2016 (2015 £nil).

33. LEASES
The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases for land and buildings for each of the following periods are:

Payment due
(i) less than 1 year
(ii) within 2 – 5 years
(iii) after 5 years

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

56
216
1,217
1,489

56
216
1,271
1,543

The Society has no other off Balance Sheet arrangements.

34. COUNTRY BY COUNTRY REPORTING
The regulations under Article 89 of the CRD IV require the Society to disclose the following information about the source of the Society’s income
and the location of its operations:
• Name, nature of activities and geographical location: The Society has one dormant subsidiary and operates only in the United Kingdom.
The principal activities of the Society are noted in the Directors’ Report on pages 16 to 20.
• Average number of employees: as disclosed in Note 8 to the accounts.
• Annual turnover is equivalent to total income and along with profit before tax is as disclosed in the Income and Expenditure Account on page 26.
• Corporation Tax paid: as noted in the Cash Flow Statement on page 30.
• Public subsidies: there were none received in the year.*
* Details of the Society’s drawings under the Term Funding Scheme can be found in Note 31 above.
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ANNUAL BUSINESS STATEMENT
1. STATUTORY PERCENTAGES
Lending limit
Funding limit

2017
%

2016
%

Statutory Limit
%

0.4
20.2

0.6
15.1

25.0
50.0

The above percentages have been calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Building Societies Act 1986 as amended by the Building
Societies Act 1997.

STRATEGIC REPORT

For the year ended 30th November 2017

The statutory limits are as laid down under the Building Societies Act 1986 as amended by the Building Societies Act 1997 and ensure that the
principal purpose of a building society is that of making loans which are secured on residential property and are funded substantially by its members.

2. OTHER PERCENTAGES
As percentage of shares and borrowings:
Gross capital
Free capital
Liquid assets
Profit for the financial year as a percentage of mean total assets
Management expenses as a percentage of mean total assets

2017
%

2016
%

5.8
5.5
16.7
0.15
1.03

6.8
6.4
15.2
0.04
1.10

The above percentages have been prepared from the Society’s accounts and in particular:
• ‘Shares and borrowings’ represent the total of shares, amounts owed to credit institutions and amounts owed to other customers.
• ‘Gross capital’ represents the general reserve and the available for sale reserve.
• ‘Free capital’ represents the aggregate of gross capital and collective provisions for bad and doubtful debts less fixed assets.
• ‘Liquid assets’ represent the total of cash in hand, loans and advances to credit institutions, debt securities and other liquid assets.
• ‘Mean total assets’ represent the amount produced by halving the aggregate of total assets at the beginning and end of the financial year.
• ’Management expenses’ represent the aggregate of administrative expenses (including pension costs), depreciation and amortisation.
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The Funding Limit measures the proportion of shares and borrowings not in the form of shares held by individuals.

OTHER INFORMATION

Business assets comprise the total assets of the Society plus provisions for bad and doubtful debts less liquid assets and fixed assets as shown in the
Society’s accounts.

GOVERNANCE

The Lending Limit measures the proportion of business assets not in the form of loans fully secured on residential property.

Other Information

ANNUAL BUSINESS STATEMENT (continued)
For the year ended 30th November 2017

3. INFORMATION RELATING TO DIRECTORS AND OTHER OFFICERS
Directors

Year of
birth

Date of
appointment Occupation

Other directorships

1955

24.06.15

Retired Building Society Executive

Hinckley and Rugby Financial Services Limited

David Woodward

1962

21.01.15

Hinckley and Rugby Financial Services Limited

Geneane Bell

1957

17.07.13

Chartered Management
Accountant
Retired Bank Executive

Barbara Mellish

1966

22.03.17

Company Director

Name
Chairman

Colin Franklin
Senior Independent Director

Hinckley and Rugby Pension Scheme Limited

Andrew Payton

1964

29.05.07

Building Society Executive

Seratio Limited
Centre for Citizenship Enterprise
and Governance Limited
Ethical Ventures Limited
Hinckley and Rugby Financial Services Limited

Dean Waddingham

1960

17.05.17

Building Society Executive

None

Christopher White

1958

01.02.93

Building Society Executive

Gary Wilkinson

1961

22.12.14

Company Director

Nemone Wynn-Evans

1974

22.03.17

Company Director

Hinckley and Rugby Financial Services Limited
Dorothy Goodman School
Redwood Financial Partners Limited
Redwood Bank Limited
Acorn (Leicester) Limited
Shepherds Friendly Society
Coventry University Enterprises Ltd

Correspondence to directors jointly or individually should be marked ‘Private and Confidential’ and addressed c/o KPMG LLP, One Snowhill,
Snow Hill Queensway, Birmingham, B4 6GH.
Messrs. Christopher White, Andrew Payton and Dean Waddingham are employed on service contracts which were entered into on 21st March
2007, 29th May 2007 and 18th April 2017 respectively. In each case the director is entitled to one year’s notice of termination from the Society and is
required to give six months’ notice of an intention to resign.
Other Officers
Name

Occupation

Other directorships

Lisa Bengi

HR, Training and Service Quality Manager

None

Stephen Castling

Secretary and Solicitor

Julie Chapman

Mortgage Operations Manager

Tribune Walk (Hinckley)
Management Company Limited
None

Rebecca Griffin

Head of Risk and Compliance

None

Stewart Heeley

None

Andrew Mayers

Marketing and Public
Relations Manager
Compliance Manager and MLRO

Kerry McDonagh

Savings Manager

None

Chris Reid

Financial Controller & Treasury Manager

None

Michael Sharpe

None

Martyn Shortland

Information Technology Services Manager
and Information Security Officer
Mortgage Services Manager

Jill Storey

Branch and Agency Manager

Hinckley and Rugby Pension Scheme Limited

Carolyn Thornley-Yates

Head of Sales & Marketing

None
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None

None
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